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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on Special Purpose Combined Financial statements of Restricted Group
To the Board of Directors of Azure Power Energy Limited (“APEL”)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the special purpose combined financial statements of Restricted Group which consist of
Azure Power Energy Limited ("the Company™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Azure Power Global Limited
("the Parent") and certain identified entities under the common control of the Parent as listed in Note no. 1
to the special purpose combined financial statements (collectively known as "the Restricted Group-III" or
"the RG-III"), which comprise the combined Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the combined Statements
of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the combined Cash Flow Statements and the
combined Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as "special
purpose combined financial statements"). These special purpose combined financials statements have been
prepared in accordance with the basis of preparation as set out in Note no. 3 to the special purpose combined
financials statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
the consideration of report of other auditor, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the special purpose combined financial statements of the
Restricted Group-11II for the vear ended March 31, 2023 are prepared in all material respects, in accordance
with the basis of preparation described in Note no. 3 to these special purpose combined financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Refer Note no. 42 of the accompanying special purpose combined financial statements, the Parent, Azure
Power India Private Limited (the subsidiary of the Parent) and some entities under common control of
the Parent (collectively referred to as the 'Group'), have received several complaints via the Group's
common whistleblower mechanism during the vear. In response to such whistle blower complaints, the
Board of Directors and Audit and Risk Committee of the parent company appointed external legal
counsels to conduct investigations into the significant issues highlighted in the said complaints. These
issues include, but are not limited to, lapses in key control areas, governance issues, assets capitalization
date and problems with vendor management.

A special committee was constituted by the Board of Directors of the parent company (‘the Special
Committee'), to review certain material projects and contracts for anti-corruption and related compliance
issues. Independent external counsel and forensic advisors were engaged to support the Special
Committee. The Special Committee's investigation is not yer complete.

As a result of above:

a) the Restricted Group functions within a shared control environment, and there are identified design
deficiencies noted in some of the key controls in significant areas. These deficiencies constitute
material weaknesses.

b) the Group has voluntarily disclosed certain matters to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
and the U.S. Department of Justice. Engagement and cooperation with the aforesaid authorities is
continuing those mattets.
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In view of issues highlighted above, we are unable to comment whether the outcome will result in possible
adjustments and/or disclosures to the standalone financial statements, and the status of compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations.

The above matters were subject matter of qualification in the predecessor auditor's report on special
purpose on combined financial statements.

2. Refer Note no. 44 to the accompanying special purpose combined financial statements, which describes

the matters relating to non-compliances with certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)
with respect to the adoption of the annual audited standalone financial statements of RG-111 entities for
the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31 2022, before the shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting within the stipulated time as prescribed under Section 96 of the Act. Hence, the RG-III entities
has also not complied with the provisions of Section 137 of the Act relating to the filing of entities
standalone financial statements with the Registrar of Companies ("ROC") and with Section 92 relating to
the filing of annual returns. The consequential impact of the said non-compliance, including the liability
for penal charges, if any, and the consequential impact under other applicable laws and regulations is
presently not ascertainable. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the same.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Restricted Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to the Note no. 2 and 3 of the accompanying special purpose combined financial
statements, which describes that the RG-III has not formed a separate legal group of entities during the year
ended March 31, 2023, which also describes the basis of preparation, including the approach to and the
purpose for preparing them. Consequently, the Restricted Group's special purpose combined financial
statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial performances and financial position of the
Restricted Group that would have been presented has consolidated financial statements been prepared for
the Restricted Group. The special purpose combined financial statements has been prepared solely to comply
with financial reporting requirements under the indenture governing the Senior Notes. As a result, the special
purpose combined financial statements may not be suitable for any other purpose.

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the special purpose
combined financial statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation of these special purpose combined financial statements in
accordance with the basis of preparation as set out in Note no. 3 to the special purpose combined financial
statements and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
special purpose combined financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the special purpose combined financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the special purpose combined financial statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the special purpose combined financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
special purpose combined financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Idenrify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other marters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

The special purpose combined financial statements of the Restricted Group-111 for the year ended March 31,
2022 were audited by another auditor, whose report dated November 10, 2023 expressed a modified
opinion on those statements related to martters mentioned above in the paragraphs of Basis for qualified
opinion.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
For ASA & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 009571N/N500006

A O

K Nithyananda Kamath
Partner
Membership No. 027972

UDIN: 24027972BKCRGI1606

Place: Kochi, India
Date: April 15, 2024



Restricted Group- [1I

Special purpose combined balance sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amount in INR millions. uniess otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current assets
Property. plant and eyuipiment 5 28548 29482
Right-of-use assets 30 887 840
Caputal work-m-progress 5 | 3
Financial assets 6
- Trade receivables 6! 200 720
- Loans 62 4.878 5945
- Other financial assets 63 2,524 405
Deferred tax assets (nct) 182 172 139
Income tax assets (net} 7 161 176
Other non-current assets 8 534 523
Total non-current assets 37,905 38233
Current assets
Inventory SA | -
Financial assets 9
- Trade receivables 91 3108 2.901
sl and cash equividents b2 036 290

- Other bank balances 93 2,030 1,296
- Loans 94 1,943 925
= Othien finanvial assels 9.5 482 176
Other current assets 10 34 31
Total current assets 8,254 5,619
Total assets 46.159 43,852
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 111 113 113
Other equity 112 9.169 8,434
Total equity 9.282 8,547
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 12
- Dotrowings 121 28,012 27,939
- Lease liabilities 30 923 793
- Other financial liabilities 122 - 135
Provisions 131 107 123
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 181 1,689 1.344
Other non-current liabilities 14 2,221 2,148
Total non-current liabilities 32,952 32,502
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 15
- Borrowings 151 2,405 2.160
- Lease liabilities 30 62 59
- Trade payables

Total outstanding ducs of micro and small enterpuises 132 10 0

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 152 233 159
- Other financial liabilities 153 828 144
Other current liabilities 16 106 106
Provisions 132 6 5
Current tax liabilities (net) 17 275 164
'Total current liabilities 3.925 2,803
Total liabilities 36,877 35 305
Total equity and liabilities 46,159 413,852
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 4-45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the special purpose combined financial statements

¥
;)t' Chartered \ e

|
' Ac -
\.< countants | o,

For and on behalf of Restricted Group

Place
Date
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Ebene, Mauritius
15 April 2024

Place : Ebene Mauritius
Date 45 april 2024



Restricted Group- 11

Special purpose combined statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amount in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue
Revenue from operations 19 6.086 6.330
Other income 20.2 49 567
Total revenue (I) 6,135 6.897
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 21 51 51
Other expenses 24 888 974
Total expenses (11) 939 1.025
Earnings before interest, depreciation and amortization 5,196 5.872
(EBITDA) ()-(11) (A)
Depreciation and amortisation expense- (B) 22 1,041 1.041
Interest income- (C) 20.1 875 759
Finance costs- (D) 23 2,313 2.922
Profit before tax (A-B+C-D) 2,717 2.668
Tax expense:
Current tax expense 18 606 585
Deferred tax charge 18 100 568
Total tax expense 706 1.153
Profit after tax 2,011 1.515
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Effective portion of cash flow hedge 1,418 (5.683)
Income tax eftect (212) 852

1,206 (4.831)
Exchange differences on translating the financial statements (2.484) 3,719
of foreign entities
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 37 2 E
Income tax effect 18 - E
Other comprehensive expense (1,276) (1,112)
Total comprehensive income 735 403
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 4-45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the special purpose combined financial statements.
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For and on behalf of Restricted Group

Dircctor
Place 1 Epene Mauritius
Date : 15 April 2024



Restricted Group- 111
Special purpose combined statement of cash flows for the yvear ended March 31, 2023
(Al amount m INR millions unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31. 2022

e

Cash flow from operating activitics

Profit before lax

Adjustinent to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flow
Depteciation and amotltsation expense

Interest mcome

Exchange difference (net)

Defened 1evenue

Allowance for doubtful nade recervables (net)
Advance wiitten off

Asset wrilten off

Loss on account of modification of contractual cash flows
Provision for diminutton in assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Provisions / liabilities no longer required wnitten back
Bad debts written oft

Viability Gap funding income

Contract assels

Finance cost

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital

(Increase) in trade receivables

Decrease in other cirrentmon-curent fimancial assers
Decrease/ (Increase) in Security deposit

{Increase) in inventory

(Increase) in other current assets

Decrease/ (inciease) in other non-curnvent assets
Increase in trade payables

[ncrease/(Decrease) in other curtent financial liabilities
Increase in other cunent and non-current liabilities
Increase in curient provisions

{Decrease) in non-cunrent provistons

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid (net of refunds)

Net cash from eperating activities ) (A)

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (including capital work m progress, capital advance and capital creditors)

Interest received

Net (investment in)/proceeds from bank deposit (having the original matunty of

more than three manths)

Proceeds from sale of investment

Loan given to others

Loan from/(given) to holding/lellow subsidiaries (net)

Proceeds from repayment of loan by holding/fellow subsidiary companies

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of Green Bonds

Repayment of Green bonds

Proceeds from borrowings taken from holding company

Proceeds (rom current bornowmg

Repaynient of current borrowings

Payment for hedging arranpements

Payment of lease liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Lflect ot exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (D)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(A+B+C+D)

Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 9.2)
Balances with schedute banks:

- On cunent accounts

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months
Total cash aud cash equivalents

Page 3 of 57

2,117 2,668
1041 1.041
(873) (759
(th (165)
(43} 73
il (262)
|
9 7
16 180
25
20 43
(2) (104)
- 2
(84) .
27y -
2313 2,669
5396 5,420
(2% (250)
12 24
4 (0]
(1) -
(23) (12)
4 (182)
77 36
24 (36)
87 57
L 1
- (12)
5,558 5.045
(480) (472)
5,078 4.573
(82) (161)
RV 500
(709) 199
- 384
- (130)
50 (4,622)
2 4,569
(424) 739
_ 30,285
(2.228) (37.004)
- 235
135 .
(200) (845)
(813) (991}
(57) (10)
(1,186) (2,980)
(4,349) (11,310)
305 (5.998)
41 4346
346 (1,652)
290 1.942
636 290
364 284
272 6
636 290




Restricted Group- 111

Special purpose combined statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amount i1 INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars Opening balance as | Cash flow | Changein Other changes** | Closing balance as at
at April 01, 2022 (net) foreign March 3(, 2023
exchange
rate
Non current borrowings (including current maturities) 29,954 (2,298) 2497 94 30.247
Current borrowings 163 5 - . 170
Lease liabilites 852 (57) - 190 985
Total liabilities from financing activitics 30,971 (2,350 2,497 284 31,402

Particulars

Opening balance as

Cash flow

Change in

Other changes**

Closing balance as at

at April 01, 2021 (net) foreign March 31, 2022
exchange
rate

Non cunent borrowings (including cwrrent maturities) 36 814 (6.719) 761 1902) 29954
Current borrowings - (610) - 775 165
Lease liabilities 834 68 - (50) 852
Total liabilities from financing activities 37.648 (7.261) 761 (L77 30,971
**Including adjustments of ancillary borrowing cost

See accompanying notes (o the financial stalements 4-45

Notes:

I The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) on "Statement of Cash Flows" referred to Section

133 of Companies Act 2013

2 The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of the special purpose combined financial statements

-
;? Chartered 3

<.\ Accountants [~y
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Date 15 April 2024
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Date

e

Ebene Mauritius
15 April 2024




Restricted Group- 1L

Special purpose combined statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
TAll amount in INR mullions. unless otherwise stated )

(a) Statement of changes in equity®

Shares (Aggregate of Restricted Group of entities):

For the Year ended Mareh 31, 2023

Equity shares ol INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At April 01, 2022

Changes in equity share caprtal during the year

At March 31, 2023

For the Year ended March 31, 2022

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

At April 01, 2021

Changes i1 equity share capital during the year

At March 31, 2022

Number of
shares

Amount

_—

L1254.012 113
11254012 113
11254112 113
1.12.54.112 113

* Share capital represents the aggregate amount of share capital of idenufied subsidiaries of the Restricted Group as at the respective period and does not necessarily
represent legal share capital for the purpuse of the Restricted Group

(b) Other equity**

For the year ended March 31, 2023:

Reserves and surplus Equity Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Surplus/ Securities component of Exchange Defined Effective
Particulars (deficit) in the premium Compulsorily differences on benefit plans | portion of cash Total equity
statenient of reservet Convertible translating the (Refer note 37)|  flow hedges )
profit and loss Debentures*** | financial statements (Refer note 32)
of foreign entities

At April 1, 2022 (1.406) 9 960 1.120 (1.097) th (142) 8,434
Profit for the year 2011 - - - - - 2,011
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - (2484) 2 1.206 (1,276)
At March 31, 2023 605 9.960 1,120 (3.581) 1 1.064 9.169
For the vear ended March 31, 2022:

Reserves and surplus Equity Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Securities component of | Exchange differences| Defined benefit Effective
Particulars Surplus (deficn) pl'emllln‘l C(‘)mpulsprily _ on transkating the plans (Refer | portion of cash HEEIeR
i the statement reserve# Convertible | finmancial stafements ol note 37) flow hedges -
ot prolit and Debentures*** loretgn erntities (Refer note 32)

loss
At April 01, 2021 (2.921) 9.960 1.120 (4.816) (hH 4,689 8.031
Protit for the year 1515 - - - - - 1.515
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 3 - - 3719 - (<.831) (1.112)
At March 31,2022 (1.406) 9.960 1.120 (1.097) 111 (142) 8434

** Other equity represents the aggregate amount of other equily of dentified subsidiaries of Restricted Group as of the respective period and does not necessarily
represent legal other equity for the purpose of the Restricted Group

*** CCDs were tssued to Azure Power India Private Limited, Azure Power Makemake Private Ltd and Haeron Power Singapore Ple Limited with coupon rate of 0%

and convertible into equivalent number ol equity shares

# Securities premium reserve includes INR 1,116 million on account of equity component of compulsorily convertible debenture

See accompanving notes to the financial statements

445

The accompanying notes ave an ttegral part of the special purpose combmed financial statements

For and on behalf of Restricted Group

sz
Place
Date

Ebene.
15 April 2024

Mauritius
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Restricted Group-111
Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(INR amount in millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. General Information

Azure Power Energy Limited (“APEL” or “the Company™) was incorporated on June 15, 2017 as a public company limited by
shares incorporated under laws of Mauritius. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Azure Power Global Limited (the
“Parent”) and has its registered office at C/o. AAA Global Services Ltd., 4" Floor, Iconebene, Rue De L’institut, Ebéne 80817.
Republic of Mauritius. The Company and certain subsidiaries of Azure Power India Private Limited (APTPL), collectively “The
Restricted Group Entities” and “Restricted Entity” individually (as listed below) carry out business activities relating to generation
of electricity through non-conventional renewable energy sources engaged in the ownership, maintenance and management of
solar power planis and generation of solar energy based on long-term contracts (power purchase agreements or “PP.A ) with
Indian government entities as well as other non-governmental energy distribution companies and commercial customers. APEL
is duly registered as Foreign Portfolio Investor Entity with the Securities Exchange Board of India for investing in debt instruments
in India on July 7, 2017,

APEL and 16 Indian subsidiaries (as listed beloW) of Azure Power Global Limited (APGL) form part of “Restricted Group - 11"
During (he ycar cuded March 31, 2018, the Company had issued USS$ Senior Notes to institutional investors and is listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST). APEL invested the proceeds, net of issue expenses in Non-
Convertible Debentures (*NCDs") and External commercial borrowings (“ECBs”) to replace existing Rupee and external debt of
Restricled Group enfities. Restricted entitics arc dircetly or indirectly under common control of the parent. APEL and restricled
entities have been considered as “Restricted Group” for the purpose of financial reporting.

During the previous year, the Company has issued Solar Green bonds (the "Bond") of US $414 Million, at coupon of 3.575%
maturing in 2026. The proceeds from this bonds were used to repay the existing 5.50% US$ 500 Million Solar Green Bond issued
in 2017. The Bond has a tenor of 5 years with amortisation and waterfall structures and is a leverage-positive transaction for the
Group

The Restricted Group-IlI entities which are under the common control of the Parent company comprises the following entities:

Entities Principal Activity Country of “ Held by Parent
- _ P Incorporation March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Azure Power Energy Limited Bond issuance Mauritius 100% 100%
Azure Power (Punjab) Private Generation of Solar )
L ; India 100% 100%
Limited power
Azure P_ower Haryana) Private - Generation of Solar 1 -
e (Haryana) India 99.17% 99.17%
Limited power
. . .. Generation of Solar .
Azure Urja Private Limited e o India 100% 100%
power
o deneration of Solar | -
Azure Surya Private Limited India 100% 100%
power
”A urc Power (Karnataka) Private Generation of Sol o
ZHE TR ) e o Tndia 100% 100%
Limited power
. . . Generation of Solar .
Azure Photovoltaic Private Limited India 100% 100%
power
[nsare Powe Infrstrctur Pevate | Generation of Sola N
47u1.e 0 astructure Private eneration of Solar India 100% 100%
Limited power
. ) . Generation of Solar . ,
Azure Power (Raj.) Private Limited India 100% 100%
power
) Generati -f‘S lar _
¢l Private Limited reneratinn ot nota India 100% 100%
; power

Page 6 of 57




Restricted Group-IIT
Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(INR amount in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Country of | % Held by Parent e
Incorporation |  March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

Entities Principal Activity

Generation of Solar

Azure Clean Energy Private Limited India 100% 100%
power
. . . Generation of Solar )
Azure Sunrise Private Limited India [00% 100%
power
Generation of Solar
Azure Sunshine Private Limited ' India 100% 100%
power
. ) L Generation of Solar )
Azure Power Eris Private Limited India 100% 100%
power
Azure Power Mars Private Limited Generation of Solar India 100% 100%
power
Azure Power Pluto Private Limited | Ocneration of Solar India 100% 100%
power
A.zu.rc Power Thirty Seven Private Generation of Solar India 99 84% 99 849
Limited power

2. Purpose of the special purpose combined financial statements

These are special purpose combined financial statements, which have been prepared for the purpose of complying with financial
reporting requirements under the indenture governing the US$ Senior Notes. This special purpose combined financial statements
presented herein reflect the Restricted Group’s results of operations, assets and liabilities and cash flows for the year presented.
The basis of preparation and significant accounting policies used in preparation of these special purpose combined financial
statements are set out in note 3 and 4 below.

3. Basis of preparation

The indenture governing the US$ Senior Notes requires Restricted Group to prepare Ind AS combined financial statements of the
Restricted Group for the purpose of submission to the bond holders. The Tnd AS combined financial statements of the Restricted
Group have been prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles laid down by the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) (except Ind AS — 33 on Earnings Per Share) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and the guidance note on Combined and Carve-out Financial Statements issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).

Management of the Company has prepared the Special Purpose Combined Financial Statements. which comprise the Combined
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
Combined Statement ot Cash IFlows and Combined Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2023, a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The items in the special purpose combined financial statements have been classified considering the principles under Ind AS 1,
Presentation of Financial Statements.

The Ind AS combined financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis and tive historical cost
convention, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount;

» Derivative financial instruments

» Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

Page 7 of 67




Restricted Group-111
Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(INR amount in millions, unless otherwise stated)

losses are eliminated. All the inter group transactions are undertaken on Arms Lengths basis. There is no allocation of expenses
within the Restricted Group. The information presented in the combined financial statements of the Restricted group may not be
representative of the position which may prevail after the transaction. The resulting financial position may not be that which might
have existed if the combining businesses had been a stand-alone business.

The non-controlling interest held by outsiders amount to INR 4 million and INR 4 million as ot March 2023 and March 2022
respectively. Share capital and reserves disclosed in the combined financial statements is not the legal capital and reserves of the
Restricted Group and is the aggregation of the share capital and reserves of the individual combining entities. Tncome taxes are
arrived at by aggregation of the tax expenses actually incurred by the combining businesses, after considering the tax effects of
any adjustments which is in accordance with the Guidance Note on Combined and Carve-Out Financial Statements issued by the
ICALT

Accordingly, the procedures followed for the preparation of the combined financial statements:

(a) Combined like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the combining entities.

(b) Eliminated in full intragroup assets and liabilities. equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Restricted Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as fixed
assets, are eliminated in full).

These Ind AS combined financial statements may not be necessarily indicative of the financial performance, financial position
and cash flows of the Restricted Group that would have occurred if it had operated as a separate stand-alone Group of entities

during the year presented or the Restricted Group’s future performance.

The special purpose combined financial statements include the operation of entities in the Restricted Group, as if they had been
managed together for the year presented.

Transactions that have taken place with the Unrestricted Group (i.e. other entities which are a part of the Group' and not included
in the Restricted Group of entities) have been disclosed in accordance of Ind AS 24, Related Party Disclosures.

The preparation of financial information in conformity with Ind AS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Restricted Group’s accounting policies.

4. Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Restricted Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

» Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

»  Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

YV VY

There is no unconditional right to defer the seitlement of the liability for at [east twelve months atter the reporting period
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Restricted Group-TT
Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(INR amount in millions, unless otherwise stated)

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/liabilitics.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets lor processing and their realisation/settlement in cash and cash
equivalents. The companies have identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets and
liabilities.

b) Property, Plant and equipment

Capital work-in-progress, property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-
term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Restricted Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement
if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The
present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset
if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Refer to note 38 regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates and
assumptions and provisions for further information about the recorded decommissioning provision.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and
loss when the assel is derecognised. The Restricted Group considers the cost of the replacement as the cost of the replaced part,
when it was acquired or constructed, in case it is not practicable to determine the separate cost of the component of asset. The
residual values, useful lives and methods ot depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively. if appropriate.

c¢) Depreciation

Based on legal opinion obtained, management is of the view that application of CERC and/or SERC rates for the purpose of
accounting of depreciation expense is not mandatory. Hence, Restricted Group is depreciating the assets based on technical
assessment made by technical expert and management estimate.

Depreciation on property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful
lives estimated by the management. Considering the applicability of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, the management
has re-estimated useful lives and residual value of all of its property plant and equipment during the previous year.

The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflects its estimate of the useful lives and residual value
of the Property plant and equipment, though these rates in following cases are different from lives prescribed under Schedule 11
of the Companies Act, 2013 based upon the nature of asset, the operating condition of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset,
past history of replacement and anticipated technological changes.

o Categorv Lifegper Schedule If '~ Life considered
" Furniture and f fltmgs - l6years S years
Inverter 25 years 25 years S
Buildings 30 years 35 years
- _Vel_licl_es_ - R 8/10 years 5 years a
?y_ean N years -
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Restricted Group-111
Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(INR amount in millions, unless otherwise stated)

change in accounting estimate as per Ind AS 8 (Accounting policies, change in accounting estimates and errors) and have been
accounting for prospectively with effect from April 1, 2021.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the lite of the principal
asset.

Assets individually costing less than INR 5.000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

The assets’ residual values of not more than [0% of the original cost of the asset and useful lives are reviewed at each financial
year end or whenever there are indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

d) Capital work in progress (“CWIP”)

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of items of property, plant and equipment that are not ready for use at the balance sheet
date.

¢) Leases

The Restricted Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is. if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the respective companies under the Restricted Group are lessees

The Restricted Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shorl-term leases and leases
of low-valuc assets. The Restricted Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right of use assets

The Restricted Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of fease liabilities recognized, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Restricted Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section Tmpairment of non-financial
assets.

ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Restricted Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid unde
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Restricted Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Restricted Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Restricted Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabililies is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease
payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) ar
a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underfying asset.

Liarlered
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Restricted Group-IT1
Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2623
(INR amount in millions, unless otherwise stated)

iii) Short term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Restricted Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a puirchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a sub stantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary cost incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Hedging cost paid relates to borrowing of the group accordingly has been considered as part of finance cost
g) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of'another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.c., the date that the Restricted Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial assets are classified in three categories:
» Debt instruments at amortised cost
» Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
»  Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
The Iosses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The category applies to the Restricted
Gy ade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.
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Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Restricted Group recognizes interest
income, impairment losses and reversals in the statement of profit and loss and in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at {air value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI. is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Restricted Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only it doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch™).

Debt instrument included within FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit
and loss.

Derecognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Restricted
Group’s balance sheet) when:
a) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b) The Restricted Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Restricted Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Restricted
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Restricted Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Restricted Group
continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Restricted Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the
Restricted Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Restricted Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Restricted Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Restricted Group applies expected credit loss (ECL ) model for measurement and recognition
n‘[ ampm u\m loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

> Finan '{ﬁ{ assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
Chitbrade!
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Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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» TFinancial asset that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

» Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Restricted Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Restricted Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it reco gnises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Restricted Group determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL
is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in the
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on a 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that
is possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Restricted Group in accordance with the contract and

all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the

cash flows. an entity is required to consider:

»  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot
be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Restricted Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) is recognized during the period as expense/ income in the statement of profit and
loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation
for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the

Restricted Group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Restricted Group combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition as financial liabilities at {air value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables or as derivatives designated as hedgzing instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

~ Allfinancial liabilities arc recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and botrowings, net of the directly attributable
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Notes to spccial purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(INR amount in miltions, unless otherwise slatcd)_

The Restricted Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, including bank overdraft and
derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial tecognition as at fair value through profit ut luss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Restricted Group that are not designated as hedging
instiuments in liedpe relaionships as defined by Tnd AS 10%. Sepwruted eibedded detivatives are also clussified as held tor
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losscs on habilitics held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loes

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at tair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date
of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised in OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to statement
of profit and loss. However, the Restricted Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Restricted Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,

no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which

are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes

to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Restricted Group senior management determines change in the business

model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Restricted Group's operation. Such changes are

evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Restricted Group cither or ceases to perform an

activity that is significant to its operations. If the Restricted Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification

prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediate next reporting period following the change in

B J“IF?'NJ.‘JHﬁSS model. The Resricted Group does not restare any previansly recagnized caing, lnsses (inclnding impairment gains
$ oro6sy) ar interest.
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Notes to special purpose combined financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(INR amount in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Original classification
Amortised cost

R;’ised _cl;lssii'iga_tion
FVTPL

Accounting treatment

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in statement of
profit and loss.

FVTPL

Amortised Cost

Amortised cost

FVTOCI

Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying

amount, EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCI. No change
in EIR due to reclassification.

FVTOCT Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted
against fair value. Consequently, the asset is measured as if it had
always been measured at amortised cost.

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No |
other adjustment is required.

FVTOCI FVTPL Assels continue to be measured at fair value. Cumulative g_ain—or loss |

previously recognized in OClI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss the reclassification date.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currentty

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Compulsory Convertible Debentures

Convertible debentures are separated into liability and equity components, where applicable based on the terms of the contract.

On issuance of the convertible debenture, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of
transaction costs) until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption.

"he remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in equity since conversion option
meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction costs are deducted tfrom equity, net of associated income tax.
The carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible preference shares, where
applicable based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the instruments are initially recognised.

h) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

In the normal course of business, the Restricted Group uses derivative instruments for the purpose ot mitigating the exposure
from foreign currency fluctuation risks associated with forecasted transactions denominated in certain foreign currencies and to
minimize earnings and cash flow volatility associated with changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and not for speculative
trading purposes. These derivative contracts are purchased within the Restricted Group’s policy and are with countcrparties that
are highly rated financial institutions. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial
assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from
chapeesduthe fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss except for effective partion of cash flow
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At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Restricted Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Restricted Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.
The documentation includes the Restricted Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the
hedging/economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the naturc of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity
will assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving
offselting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been
highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

The Restricted Group evaluates hedge effectiveness of cash flow hedges at the time a contract is entered into as well as on an
ongoing basis. The ineffective portion of cash flow hedge is recorded as expense in statement of profit and loss. The cost of
effective portion of cash flow hedges is expensed over the period of the hedge contract.

Undesignated contracts

Changes in fair value of undesignated derivative contracts are reported directly in statement of profit and loss along with the
corresponding transaction gains and losses on the items being economically hedged. The Restricted Group enters into foreign
exchange currency contracts to mitigate and manage the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates. These foreign exchange
derivative contracts were entered into to hedge the fluctuations in foreign exchange rates for recognized balance sheet items such
as the Restricted Group’s U.S. dollar denominated borrowings. The Restricted Group has not designated the derivative contracts
as hedges for accounting purposes. Realized gains (losses) and changes in the fair value of these foreign exchange derivative
contracts arc recorded in foreign exchange gains (losses), net in the statements of profit and loss. These derivatives are not held
for speculative or trading purposes.

The Restricted Group does not have any net investment in a foreign operation
i) Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Restricted Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Restricted Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Application of interpretation for Service Concession Arrangements (SCA)

The Management has assessed applicability of Appendix C of Indian Accounting Standards 115: Service Concession
Arrangements for the power purchase agreement which the Restricted Group has entered into. In assessing the applicability of
SCA, the management has exercised significant judgement in relation to the underlying ownership of the assets, the attached risks
and rewards of ownership. residual interest and the fact that secondary lease periods are not at nominal lease rentals ete. in
concluding that the arrangements don’t meet the criteria for recognition as service concession arrangements.

Sale of power

Revenue from sale of power is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed or is determinable,
solar energy kilowatts are supplied and collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is based on the solar energy kilowatts actually
supplied to customers (including the solar energy kilowatts supplied and not billed on reporting date) multiplied by the rate per
kilo-watt hour agreed to in the respective PPAs. The solar energy kilowatts supplied by the Restricted Group are validated by the
customer prior to billing and recognition of revenue.

The Restricted Group entities considers whether there arc other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations
1o \\=I1i§:h\-a_'horti0|1 of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of power, the
J d.-ril‘\m]?__g.‘rl didrs the effects of variable consideration and consideration payable to the customer (if any).
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Further, revenue from the recovery of Safe-guard duties and Goods and Service Tax under the change in law provision are
recognized over the PPA period based on terms agreed with customers or unless agreed otherwise.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Restricted
Group estimates Lhe expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Income from carbon credit emission

Revenue from the sale of carbon credit emissions are recognized at the time of transfer of carbon credits to the customers, at
consideration agreed under the sale agreements.

Rebates

[n some Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs), the Restricted Group provide rebates on invoice if payment is made before the due
date. Rebates are offset against consideration payable by the customers. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected
tuture rebate, the Group applies the most likely method.

Contract assets

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned for its right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the entities forming part of Restricted Group perform by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before acceptance by the customer, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration
that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entities forming part of Restricted
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the entities forming part of Restricted Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
entities forming part of Restricted Group performs under the contract.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the right of entities forming part of Restricted Group to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in section (g) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

j) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at the fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Restricted Group will comply all with all attached conditions.

Government grant relating 1o income are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period necessary to
clithem with the cost that they are intended to compensate and presented within other operating income.

550¢,
XN et . . . . . o
Jovern fn}l arant relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non- current liabilities as deferred
liveenrdeli-ekant and are cicdited to statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
ented within other operating income.
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The Company considers Viability Gap Funding (VGF) as government grant and records the proceeds received from VGF on
fulfilment of the underlying conditions as deferred revenue. Such deferred VGF revenue is recognized in the statement of profit
and loss in proportion to the actual sale of solar energy kilowatts during the period to the total estimated sale of solar energy
kilowatts during the tenure of the applicable power purchase agreement pursuant to the revenue recognition policy.

k) Foreign currencies

The functional currency of APEL is the Uniled States Dollar (“US$”) and presentation currency for special purpose combined
financial statement of Restricted Group is Indian rupees (*INR”). The Restricted Group entities with operations in India use [NR
as the functional currency. The financial statements of APEL are translated into INR using the exchange rate as of the balance
sheet date for assets and liabilities, historical exchange rates for equity transactions and average exchange rate for the year for
income and expense items. Translation gains and losses are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss as a
component of other equity.

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which a respective entity under Restricted Group

operates and is normally the currency in which the respective entity under the Restricted Group primarily generates and expends
cash.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Restricted Entities at the functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition

Conversion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or statement of profit and loss are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Restricted Group has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Restricted Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme are
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial valuation is
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The Restricted Group presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional
right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Restricted Group has the unconditional legal and
contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as nan-current liability. The
Restricted Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Restricted Group recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the Restricted Group has a present
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at present value of future
cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

The interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability. The Restricted Group recognizes the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and
¥» Interest expense.

m) Income taxes

Tax expense tepresents the sum of current tax and deferred tax of Restricted Group entities.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities by cach entity in Restricted Group. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Restricted Group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, on carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax loss, subject to exceptions as below:
» deferred income tax is not recognised on the initial recognition (including MAT) of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss: and

» deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates applicable on Restricted Group that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
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(INR amount in millions. unless otherwisc stated)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) of Restricted Group is reviewed at each reporting
date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered.

Deterred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in QCT or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities of respective entities under Restricted Group are offset when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the entities intend to settle their current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

In the situations where one or more entities in the Restricted Group are entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961
enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where they operate, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is
recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity s
gross total income is subjcct to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which
reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However, the group
restricts recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first
are considered to reverse first.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entities forming part of
the Restricted Group will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the balance shect when it is
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the entities forming part of the Restricted Group.

n) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Restricted Group entities” that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the other components,

and for which discrete financial information is available. All operating segments’ operating results are regularly reviewed by the
respective Restricted Group entities’ chief operating decision maker(s) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segments and assess their performance. The Parent’s chief executive officer is the chief operating decision maker.

The activities of Restricted Group entities mainly involve sale of electricity. Considering the nature of Restricted Group
entities’ business and operations, there are no separate reportable operating segments in accordance with the requirements of
Indian Accounting Standard 108, 'Operating Segments' referred in to Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be
provided other than those already provided in the financial statements.
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o) Provisions
General

Provisions are recognized when the Restricted Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Restricled Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

Upon the expiration of the lease agreement for solar power plants located on leasehold land, the Restricted Group is required to
remove the solar power plant and restore the land. The Restricted Group records a provision for such decommissioning costs.
Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and
are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the
risks specitic to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted

as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the
assel.

p) Iimpairment of non-financial assets

The Restricted Group, at each reporting date, assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Restricted Group estimate the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds recoverable amount and the asset is written down to
its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Restricted Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately
for each of the CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period
of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Restricted Group extrapolates
cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country
or-cauntries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

usses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
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For assets excluding goodwill. an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Restricted Group
estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal
is treatcd as a revaluation increase.

q) Contingent assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer
a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

A contingent liabilily is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Restricted Group or a present obligalion that is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation. A contingent liability
also ariscs in extremely rarc cascs wherc there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably, The
Restricted Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

r) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
ot transter the liability takes place either:

> In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Restricted Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset ot liability, assuming that market patticipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Restricted Group uses valuation techniques that arc appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable
» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

I"or assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Restricted Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair valuc measurcment as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period.

lIm)R‘“m.;ud Group determines the policics and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as detivative
;,nfﬂ-ﬁm\' ts Wnd unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for
/ sty td"{lﬂ” discontinued opcrations.
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External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each reporting date, the Restricted Group
analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the
Restricted Group’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Restricted Group has determincd classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosuves are given in the notes 34 and 35.
s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the combined statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above.

t) Inventory

Carbon emission rights (CERs) received on registered projects are recorded as inventory. Inventories are valued at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined using weighted average method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The Group
derecognises the CERs when the certificate is sold, which occurs when units are transferred to the customer.

u) Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Impact of events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide additional information materially effecting the determination
of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets and liabilities.

The Restricted Group does not adjust the amounts recognised in its interim combined financial statements to reflect non-adjusting
events after the reporting period.

The Restricted Group makes disclosures in the interim combined financial statements in cases of significant events.

v) Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in
which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the opening balances of assets, liabilities and
equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

w) Measurement of EBITDA

The Restricted Group has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) as a separate
line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Restricted Group measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss)

from continuing operations. Tn its measurement, the Restricted Group does not include interest income, depreciation, amortisation
expense, finance cost and tax expense.
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x) Changes in accounting policy and disclosures — New and amended standards

Other amendments

A number of minor amendments to existing standards also became effective on April 01, 2022 and have been adopted by
the Restricted gronp. The adaptinn of these new acenunting pronouncements did nat have a significant impact on the
accounting policies, method of computation or presentation applied by the Restricted Group.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Restricted Group is currently evaluating the impact of the new and amended standards and interpretations that are
issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Restricted Group’s financial statements and does not expect
to have significant impact on the Restricted Group’s financial statements. The Restricted Group has not early adopted any
amendment, standard or interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective. Refer the note “Standards notified but
not yet effective” in Notes to Financial Statements.
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iul St (s for the year ended March 31, 2023

5. Property, plant and equipinent

Freehold Jand Plant and Vehicles Ofice equipment Building Computer Total L‘W
machinery progress

Gross carrying amnount.
At April 1, 2021 1,708 37,280 2 2,598 | 41,093 34
Additions | 79 - 3] [ 112 32
Disposals/ Adjustments (25) (131) - - (156) (63)
At March 31, 2022 1,184 37.228 2 2 2,629 4 41,049 3
Additions 100 | B w1
Disposals/ Adjustments - 39 - - 39) 3
At March 31, 2023 1.184 37,289 a 3 1635 A AT 1 B
Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortisation
At April 1, 2021 - 10,105 I 495 1 10,602
Charge for the year 932 E 72 | 1,005
Disposals/ Adjustments - (1) - - - [}
At March 31, 2022 - 10,997 - 1 567 2 11,567 -
Charge for the year - 936 - & 73 3 1,009
Disposals/ Adjustments - (7 - - - - (7) -
At March 31, 2023 5 11,926 5 1 640 2 12,569 R
Net Block
At March 31, 2022 1,184 26,23 2 | 2,062 2 a0 4H0 3
At March 31, 2023 1,164 25363 2 2 1,995 2 25548 1

(i) Property, plant and equipment are pledged as collateral against borrowing, the details related to which is described in note 12.1 on borrowings

(ii) On tansition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its propeity, plant and equipment recognized as at | April 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2023 Amount in CWIP for a peviid of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears

Priagucts o pwogi ]

Tuntul I - = =

As at March 131, 2022 Amount 11 CWIP for a period of Total

Lesa than § year

1-2 vears

2.3 Yeats More than 3 years

Projects 1n progress

Total

As at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, there are no CWIP whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to original plan
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Asat As at

Particulars March 31,2023  Maich 31. 2022

6. Non-current financial assets
(Carried at amortised cost, unless stated otherwise)

6.1 Trade receivables
Tiade jeceivables (unsecured) (1efer note 28) 200 720
Total 200 720

Break-up for trade receivables

Undisputed trade receivables, considered good 200 720
Undisputed trade receivables, credit impaired —-__‘—_4
Total 200 724

Impairment allowance for trade receivables (refer note 35)
Undisputed trade receivables. credit impaired - (4)
Total 200 720

Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023 Unbilled Not due** Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
receivables* Less than 6 6 mouths — 1 1-2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 years
Months year
Undisputed Trade Reccivables — considered good - 200 - - - - = 200
= 200 - - = - - 200
As at March 31, 2022 Unbilled Not due= Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
veceivables® Less than 6 6 months - [ 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years
- Months yeir
Undisputed Tiade Receivables -- considered good 55 665 - - - . = 720
Undisputed Trade 1eceivable - credit impaired - 4 - - - o - 4
55 669 - - - - = 724

* Unbilled receivables 1epresents receivables where the goods and/or services have been provided to the customer for which the Group has unconditional sight to consideration TTowever
the Group is ye( o raise invoices Lo the customer

** Nol due represent 1eceivables wlich aren't due as per credit terms agreed with the customer

6.2 Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Carried at amortised cost

Peiformance guarantee deduction receivable 9 8
Loans to related party

Loans to holding company # (refer note 26) 4,858 5,896
1.0ans to fellow subsidiary companies #4 (refer note 26) 11 41
Total 4,878 5,945

#During the previous year ended March 31, 2022, some of the Restricted Group entities have renewed/granted the loans to Holding Company for long tetm and has classified the same
accordingly. The loans are 1epayable over the period of 3 years

## During the year ended Maich 31. 2021, some of the Restricted Group cutitics have renewed the loan given to fellow Subsidiary Companies The loans carvics interest rate of 8, 20%-
10 60% per annum and is repayable in August 2024 along with interest (repayable at the option of the borower)

6.3 Other financial assets
Carried at amortised cost

Term deposits* 2 27
Security deposits 9 13
Interest accrued on loans and advances (o holding company (refer note 26) 605 343
Interest accrued on Joans and advances Lo fellow subsidiary (refer note 26) - 22
Derivative instruments at fair value through OCI

Derivative assets ### (refer note 12 | and 32) | 08 -
Total 2.524 405

#4# This 1elates to USS Senior Noles

Azure Power (Hrvann) Private Limited
*Axis Bank
Balance of INR 0,16 willion as al March 31,2023 (March 31, 2022: INR 0 18 million Represents the amount of fixed deposit for bank guarantee issued to statutory authoritics

Azre Surya Private Limited
*ICICI Bank
Balance of INR 0.07 million as at Maich 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022 INR Nil) Repiesents an amount under escrow account

Avure Power Inlvastructonre Privaie Limited

Synillion as af Maich 11,2023 (March 31.2022: INR 1 million)  Represents an amount of thitd party nisraim

[V}
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As at As al

X e f e o
Particulars March 31,2023  Maich 31,2022

Azuve Clean Baerpy Privite Limited
*ICICT Bank
Balance of INR 0 04 million as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: INR Nil million) Represents an amount under esciow account

Awzure Power Exis Private Limiged
*CBI Bank
Balance of INR 0 S8 million as at March 31,2023 (Mairch 31, 2022: 0 6 million) Repiesents tixed depaosit for bank guarantee issued Lo statulory authotities

Azure Power Mars Private Limitedd
*ICICT Bank
Balance of INR 0.01 nullion as at Marchi 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: INR Nil million) Represenis an amount under esciow account

Azwrg Power Pluto Private Limited

*JCICI Bank

Balance of INR 0.11 million as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: INR Nil million) Represents an amount under escrow account

*CBI Bank

Balance of TNR 0 14 million as at March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: 0.1 million) Represents fixed deposit for bank guarantee issued to statutory authorities

7. Income tax assets (net)
Advance imcome-tax (net of provision for tax of INR 44 million (March 31, 2022 INR Nil million )) 161 176
Total 161 176

8. Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

Capital advances to related partics (refer note 26) - 14
Capital advances to others 16 13
Prepaid performance puarantee deduction 74 78
Contract assets (1efer note 28) 444 418
Total 534 523

8A. Inventories
(Valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is Jower )
Carbon credit inventories 1

Total |

9. Current financial assets
(Caried at amortised cost, unless stated otherwise)

9.1 Trade receivables
Trade receivables (unsecured) (refer note 28) 3.108 2,901

Total 3,108 2,901

Break-up for trade receivables

Undisputed tiade receivables. considered good 2,144 2,702
Disputed trade reccivables, considered good 964 199
Undisputed trade receivables. credit impaired 59 94
Disputed (rade receivables, credit impaired 374 24
Total 3,541 3,019

Impairment allowance for trade receivables (refer note 35)

Undisputed trade receivables, credit impaired (59) 94)
Disputed trade receivables, credit impaired (374) (24)
Total 3.108 2.901

Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023 Unbilled Current but not Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
receivables* due** Less than 6 6 months — | 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years
Mouths year
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 518 1188 428 10 - - - 2,144
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired I 3 38 3 14 - - 59
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 42 40 160 72 141 141 368 964
Disputed Trade 1cceivables — credit impaired 12 11 45 20 40 40 206 374
573 1.242 671 105 195 181 574 3,541
As at March 31, 2022 Unbilled Current but not Qutstanding lot lollowing peiiods from due date of payment Tolal
receivables* duc** Less than 6 6 months — 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 ycar s
Months veal
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered good 570 1,236 199 127 194 191 165 2,702
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaiired 3 3 4 30 24 214 94
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - - 199 199
Dizputed Tiade receivables — credit impaued - - - - - 24 24

]
T
'
>
D

|

573 1,263 204 131 224 3,019
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Restricted Group- ITT
Nates to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amount in INR millioas unless otherwise stated)

As at N _-\s_al

Particulars March 31,2023  Maich 31, 2022

Trade receivables are non-interest beating and are gencrally on terms of 30 to 45 days

* Unbilled receivables represents receivables where the goods and/or services have been provided Lo the customer for which the Group has unconditional right to consideraton However,
the Group is yet to raise invoices to the customen

** Cunent but not due 1epresent receivables which aren't due as per credit terms agteed with the customet

9.2 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 364 284
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months .—212___‘_‘
Total 636 290

There are no repatriation sestriction with cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting period and priot petiod

9.3 Other bank balances

- Deposils with original maturity for more than 3 months but remaining maturity for less than 12 months 2,030 1,296
Total 2,030 1,296
9.4 Loans

(Unsecured, considered good)

Loans to holding company (refer note 26)# 1,038 -
Loans to fellow subsidiary companies (refer note 26)## 775 795
Loans to others### 130 130
Total 1.943 925

# Loans given to fellow subsidiaries carries interest rate from 8.20%%-10.60% p.a which are receivable before March 31, 2024
## Loans given Lo [ellow subsidiaries carries interest rate from 6 90%-10 60% p a which ate reeeivable before March 31, 2024
### T oans given to Azure Renewable Energy Privare Limited which carries interest rate fiom 8 2% p a and is 1eceivable before Maich 31, 2024

9.3 Other financial assets
Cartied at amoriscd cost

Interest accrued on term deposits 15 2
Interest accrued but not due on loans and advances Lo holding company (refer note 26) 203 -

Interest accrued but not due on loans and advances (o fellow subsidiary companies (1efer note 26) 210 122
Interest acerued but not due tiom others 15 |
Receivable fiom fellow subsidiary (1efer note 26) i 7
Recervable from halding company* (refer note 26) 30 44
Other receivables 3 -

Total 482 176

*Relates (0 advances/payments for reimbursement

10. Other current asscts

Contract assels (1efer note 28) 9 8
Balance with stawtory / government authoritics 23 3
Prepaid performance guaiantee deduction 4 4
Prepaid assets - others 10 9
Advance lo vendors
Unsecuwred. considered good G 6
Unsecured, considered doubtful 8 8
(Less): Allowance for bad and doubtful advances (R) 8)
6 6
Advances to employees 2 |
Total 54 31

The space has been intentionally left blank
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Restricted Group- ITI
Notes to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amount in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

11.1 Share capital*

Issucd, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital (Aggregate of
Restricted Group of entities):

Number of shares Amount
At April 01, 2021 1,12,54,112 113
Changes during the year 5 R
At March 31, 2022 1,12,54,112 113
Changes during the year 4 E
At March 31, 2023 1,12,54.112 113

*Share capital represents the aggregate amount of the share capital of identified subsidiarics of the Restricted Group as at the respective period and

does not necessarily represent legal share capital for the purpose of the Restricted Group.

a) Terms/ rights attached to shares

The respective Restricted Group entities have only one class of equity shares, Indian entities having a par value of INR 10/- per share and Mauritius
entity having a par value of USD 100/~ per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the entity, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will

be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The space has been intentionally left blank
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Restvicted Group- 111

Notes o special pui pose combined financial Statements for the year ended Maich 31, 2023

LAl amannt in INR millions unless otherwise stated )

11.2 Othey equity*

For the year ended March 31, 2023:

Reserves

Equity component of

ltemy of Other Compreliensive Income

Surplus/(deficit)in the | Seewrities prem, Compulsmily Exchange differences | Defined benefit plans | Fffective purtion i’
Partieninys statement of profit and reserved Monvertible on truniloting the (Keler note 37) cuch flow hedpes Tutal equily
loss Debentures*= financial statemenss of (Refer note 32)
foreign entities
At April 01, 2022 TR |12 (1,097) ) 142) 8,434
Profit for the vear i - . . 2001
Dt cormprelivnsive inchmerlas) F F - (2,484) 2 1.206 (1,276)
AL Maich 31, 2_99 Bis A5 1,010 LA ERTY | L4 .16
For the seir endud March 31 2022
Heserves pnl nuplu Equits component of tems of Other Comprehensive Incoms o
Surplug/(deficit) in the Sceuritics premium Compulsonly Fowhange dificrences on| - Detined benetitplans | Effective pottion of cash
Purticulats slatement of profit and resen ef Canverlible ting (he financinl (Refernate 37) flow hedges Total equity
loss Debentures®* whertidbs ot fong (Refer nole 32)
entiics
AL ApAl 1 0T (2,921) @ Y61y [RET [FETTa] ) 4,680 ]
Profit for the year 1515 - LTE
Other comprehensive neomy 5719 E {LEZL) (AN
s, i [N 900 |AED] L1 00Ty 1} 142y R R

* Other equity tepresents the aggregate amount of other equity of identificd subsidianes of Restricled Gioup as of the respective period and does not necessarily represent legal other equity: for the purpose of the Restricted Group

** CCDs were issued 1o Azure Power India Private Limited, Azuve Power Makentake Privaie Ltd and | lacron Powcr Singapore Pie Limited with coupan rate of (% and convertible into equivalent number of equity shares

# Securiucs premium resenve includes INR 1,116 million on account of cquity component of compulserily convertible debenture

Note:

(i) Surplus/ (dcficit) in the statement of profit and loss are the losses of the Rustricted Group incurred till date net of appropriations
(ii) Sccurities premium reserve is used Lo record the premium on issue of shares The resene can b utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of borus sharvs in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013
(i) Exchange differcnces arising on translalion of the forcign operations are recognised in other comprehensiv e income as deseribed in accounting policy and aceumulated in a separate reserve within equity
(1v) Defined benefits plans includes all the remeasurements. comprising of actvarial gains/losses on defined benefits obligalion and farc value of assets

(v) The cash flow hedging re:

crie Tepresents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated portion of hedging instruments cntered into for cash flow hedges The cumulative gain or loss arising

on changes in fair valuc of the designated portion of the hedging instunents that are recognised and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging resen e will be reelassified to statement of profit and loss only when the hedged

transaction alfects the profit or loss

(V23
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Restricted Group- 11T

Notes to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023

(Al amount in INR millions. unless oliwice stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

Asatl
Muarely 31,2022

12. Non-current inancial liabilities
(Canied at amortised cosl, unless stated otherwise)

12.1 Non-current borrowings

3 575% Senior Notes* (1efer note |5 | and 45)
Loans from holding compauy** (refer note 26)
Total

*3.575% Scnior Notes

28,012 27,889
- 70
28,012 27.959

During fiscal 2022, Azuic Power Energy Limited (one of the subsidiaries of APGL) issued 3.575% US$ denominaled Senior Notes (*3.575% Senior Noles™ ot “Green Bonds”™) and
taised INR 30,285 million, net of issuance expense of INR 408 million The issuance expenses have been recorded as finance cost, using the effective interest rate method and the
unamortized balance of such amounts is netted with the carrying value of the Green Bonds. The Gieen Bonds are listed on the Singapote Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-
ST). In accordance with the terms of (he issue, the proceeds were used for repayment of 5.5% Senior Notes The interest is payable on semi-annual basis and principal is payable on a
semi-annual instalment 1anging from 3 4%% to 3 8% and balance 67 4% on maturity in August 2026 As of Maich 31, 2023, (he net carrying value of the Green Bonds was INR 30,247
million The Green Bonds are secured by a pledge of Azure Power Cnergy Limited’s shares held by Azwe Power Global Limited

**The loans are repayable over the period of 3 years

12.2 Other non-current financial liabilities

Other finauncial liabilities at amortised cost

Tnterest accrued but not due on borrowings from holding company (refer note 26)
Financial liabilitics at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl)
Derivative liabilities (refer note 32)

Total

13. Provisions

13.1 Non-current

Provision for gratuity (tcfer note 37)
Provision for decommissioning liabilities*
Total

*Provision has been 1ecogmzed for decommissioning costs associated with solar power plants being constiucted on leasehold lands

131

135

6
101
107

5
123

ate under an obligation to decommission the plant at the expiry of the lease tecm before handing over the leasehold lands o the lessors

Movement in provision for decommissioning liabilities
Opening balance

Accretion during the year

Impact of change in estimate duting the year (refer note 38)
Closing balance

13.2 Current

Proviston for gratuity (refer note 37)
Provision for compensated absences
Total

14. Other non-current liabilities

Contract Liability
Deferred revenue on account of 1evenue straightlining
Defened viability gap funding

Total

15. Current financial liabilities
(Carried at amortised cost)

15.1 Current borrowings

From others:

Unsecured

Loans from holding company** (refer note 26)

Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 12 1)
Total

The tespective entities under Restricted Gtoup

15 121
9 8
23) (14)
101 115

2 »

4 S

6 5
929 773
1.292 1.375
2,221 2,148
170 165
2.235 1,995
2,405 2,160

** Loan taken from holding company canties intercst rate ranging from 6 95% Lo 8 40% p a and is tepayable before March 31,2024

The spacc has been intentionally left blank

(}' Chartered \

<\ Accountants ~

Page 31 of 57



Restricted Group- 11

Noles to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amount in INR niillions unless otherwise stated)

Particulavrs

As at
March 31,2023

Asat
March 31 2022

15.2 Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micio enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 29)

10

[
(A) 14 0
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises #
-1iom related parties (refer nole 26) 54 39
- from othets 179 120
(B) 233 159
Total (A)HB) 243 165
Trade payables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023 Unbilled Not due Outstanding for follpwing peviods from due date of payment Total
dues* trade Less than 1 1-2 years  2-3 years Movre than 3 years
payable** year
Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises aud small - 7 I 2 10
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 154 16 63 - 233
enterprises and small enterprises
154 23 64 2 243
As al March 31, 2022 Unbilled Not duc Outstanding for folowing periods from due date of payment Total
dues* trade Lessthan I 1-2years  2-3 years More than 3 years
payable** year
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 4 3 6
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than wicro 81 12 66 - 159
enterprises and small entetprises
81 16 68 165
* Unbilled dues represents payables where the goods and/or scrvices have been received, however, Group is yet to receive invoices from the vendors
** Not due uade payable represent balances which are not due as per credit terms agreed with the vendor
# (a) Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are nommally settled npto 90 days terms
(b) For terms and conditions relating to related party payables, see note 26
15.3 Other financial liabilities
Other tinancial liabilities at amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 121 120
Interest acerued and not due on bortowings from holding company (refer note 26) 11 |
Contractually reimbursable expense to holding company (refer note 26) 9 5
Payable to fellow subsidiary companies (reter note 26) 27 6
Payable to holding company (refer note 26) 2 -
Payable to employees 2 2
Payable for purchase of capital goods (o relaled parties (refer note 26) 2 2
Payable for purchase of capital goods to others 5 5
Payable to others - 3
Financial liabilities at fair value through OCI
Denvative labilities (1efer note 32) 649 .
Total 828 144
16. Other current liabilities
Stalutoty dues 21 20
Defeired viability gap funding 85 86
Total 106 106
17. Current tax liabilities (Ncet)
Provision for income (ax (net of advance tax of INR 511 million (March 31, 2022 INR 229 million)) 275 164
Total 275 164

R~ \
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Restricted Group- 1
Notes to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
LA am et i INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

Asat
March 31,2023

As at
Maich 312022

18.1 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax liabilities

1.689 1,344
Total 1.689 1 .344
18.2 Deferred tax assets
Defened tax assets 172 129
Total 172 139
18.3 Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/(liabilities) (net)

Asat _RccoEiscd in Rcuugniscﬁ a As at Recognised in Recognised in As at
April 01,2021  Profic & 1 oss (814} March 31 2022 Profit & Loss OCT M™arch 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets:
Defened revenue 376 45 - 421 45 - 466
Provision for decommissioning liabilities 35 2) - 33 “4) = 29
Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses 247 1115) - 132 (109) - 23
Minimum alternate tax 46 52 - 98 335 - 433
Allowance for doubtful trade 1eceivables 110 (75) - 35 89 - 124
Trade receivables measured at amortised cost - 50 - 50 (36) - 14
Leases - 4 - 4 RS = 29
Provision for employec benefits 3 1 - 4 €] - 3
Performance bank guaiantee 2 - - 2 | - 3
Gross deferred tax assets (A) 819 (40) - 779 345 - 1,124
Deferred tax liability:
DifTerence br:-l\vt:::n tax base and book base of property, 1462 541 2,003 445 . 2 448
plant and equipment :
Leases 16 16) - - - = -
Amortisation of extension charges 2 - - 2 - 2
EIR impact - 3 - 3 = - 3
Gross deferred tax liabitity (B) 1,480 528 - 2.008 445 - 2,453
Deferred Tax assee/ (liability) (Net) (A - B) 1061 (360 (1,229) (100 (1,329)
Cash tlow hedge 1828) - 852 24 - (212) (188)
Deferred tax asset/(liahility) (net) after QCI (1,489) (568) 852 (1,205) (100) (212) (1,517)

The Resticted Group lollows Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-12) “Income Taxes™, notified by the Compunies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 For the entities under Restricted Group that
are eligible for Tax holiday benefits under Section 80-IA of the Income Tax Acl, deferred tax asset has not been created on brought forward losses at the year-end, since it is nol
reasonably certain whether these entities would be able to 1ealise such losses outside the tax holiday period

Azure Power Energy Limited is incorporated in Mauritius having applicable income tax rate of [5% However, the restricied proup's significant operations are based in India and are
taxable as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 For effective tax teconciliation purposes, the applicable tax 1ate in Tudia has been considered

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Accounting loss before income tax

2,717 2,668
India’s statutory income tax rate 29.12% 29.12%
Tax at applicable tax rate (A) 791 777
Adjustments:
Permanent difference disallowed under Income Tax Act 219 79
Disallowance as per section 94B of Income Tax Act, 1961 not considered for defetied tax purpose 309 306
Deduction during tax holiday period (426) (57)
Carried forward losscs reversing in the tax holiday period (235) (23)
Effect of tax of APEL (Mauritius entity) 12 162
Timpact of different income tax rates (173) (90)
Others (2) (1)

) (85) 376

Total tax expense (A+B) 706 1.153
Component of tax expenses-
Cuurent lax expense 606 585
Deferred tax charge 100 568
Total tax expense 706 1,152
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Notes to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 312022

19. Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers*
Sale of power (refer note 27, 28 and 39)

Other operating revenue

Viability gap funding income (refer note 39)
Income from carbon credit emission*

Total

*Revenue trom sale of power and income tor carbon credit emission are recognised at point in time

20. Non Opcerating Income

20.1 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
- Term deposits

- Loan to holding/fellow subsidiary companies (refer note 26)

- Interest income - others

Other*

Total

*Primarily relates Lo revenue straight lining under IND AS 115

20.2 Other income

Allowance for doubtful trade receivables wrilten back
Late payment surcharge

Liabilities no longer required written back

Exchange differcnee (net)

Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Insurance claim received

Miscellancous income

Total

21. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 37)
Gratuity expenscs (refer note 37)

Staff welfare expenses

Total

22. Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 5 and 38)
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (refer note 30)

Total

23. Finance costs

Interest expenses on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
- Term loans

-3.575% Senior Noles*

-5.5% Senior Notes*

- Loan from holding/fellow subsidiary companies (refer note 26)

- Lease liabililies (refer note 30)

Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues

Other finance costs**

Total

* Including amortisation of hedging cost of INR 840 million (March 31.2022: INR 752 million)

*= Primarily includes adjustment related to IND AS 115

Lildtleied
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6,001 6,104
84 86

| 140
6,086 6,330
91 49
592 647
157 39
35 24
875 759
2 279

32 .

2 104

| 165

- 10

8 :

4 9

49 567
43 46

3 3

3 2

2 -

51 51
1,009 1,005
32 36
1,041 1,041
- 2
2.052 1,407
= 1,318

10 5

91 78
20 16
140 96
2,313 2,922




Restricted Group- ITI

Notes to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amount in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31_ 2022

24. Other expenscs

Guest house expenses

Rent (tefer note 30)

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repair and maintenance

- Plant and machinery

= Other repairs

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Management fees (refer note 26)

Legal and professional fees ,

Payment to auditor (refer details below)

Corporate social responsibilities

Operation and maintenance fees

Bad debts written off (refer note 35)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (refer note 35)
Recruitment expenses

Security charges

Bank charges

Advance written off

Asset written off

Provision for diminution in assets

Exchange difference (net)

Loss on account of modification of contractual cash flows
Adjustment related to viability gap funding (refer note 39)
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Payment to auditor:
As auditor:

Audit fees

Reimbursement of expenses
Total

5 3

3 2
46 20
48 48
107 102
37 24
6 4

2 1
105 149
30 25
. 8
21 8
1 .

- 2
20 45
313 17
4 Sl
107 112
l |

1 7

9 52
25

- 1

16 180
- 101

6 26
888 974
- 7
1

- 8

The audit fee for the year ended March 31, 2023 amounting to INR 1.50 million has not been recognised in current year since the current auditor's

appointment was made on February 06, 2024 and this is a non-adjusting subsequent event.

The audit fee recognised in previous year pertains to amounts incurred in relation to services provided by crstwhile statutory auditors of the Company. Since
the auditor's appointment was made on July 12, 2023, to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of the erstwhile auditor, audit fees for the audit of
year ended March 31, 2022 amounting to INR 11.10 million has not been recognized in year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023, as this is a non-

adjusting subsequent event

25. Earnings per share

The special purpose combined financial statements do not represent legal structure and are aggregated for a specific purpose. Accordingly, Earning Per Share

(EPS) on aggregated number of shares have not been disclosed.
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Restricted Group- 11
Nates to special purpose combived financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023

{AlLamount in INR inillions. unless otherwise stated)

26, Related party disclosures:
Rebuted parties where coutrol exists

Pavent Company: Azute I'ower Global Limited

Iolding company sl Azure Power Encrgy Limited (APEL): Azute Power Global Limited

Holding Company of Restricted Group enfities (except APEL): Azure Power India Private Linuted

Key managerial personnel; M1 Khalid Muhammad Peyrye (Duector from June 15, 2017)

M Gowtamsingh Dabee (Duector from Mach 30, 2023)

Mis Yuug Oy P Lun Leung (Director (rom November 132019 till Maich 30, 2023)

M1 Sandeep Arota (Director with effect fiom Maich 11, 2020)

Nr Gauwang Sethi (Director with effect fiom March 11, 2020)

N Kapil Sharma (Director with eftect flom Maich 08, 2022)

Mr Saurabh Gupta (Director with effect from March 2, 2023)

Nr Tarun Aggarwal (Director wilh effect from July 13, 2022)

Ms Shwelta Snivaslava (Direclor with efiect from March 26, 2024)

Ms Vani Sundaram (Director with effect fiom Febsuary 01, 2024)

Mr Pawan Kumar Agaiwal (Director with effect from June 21, 2019 till Augusr 02, 2022)
Nir. Samitla Subba (Duector with effect fiom March L1, 2020 till November 21, 2022)

Mu. Siinagesh Rambhotla (Director wilh effect from November 13, 2019 uil) July 13 2022)
Mr Nitin Vaud (Director with effect from September 14, 2020 till March 08.2022)

Mt Kishore Kumar (Director with effect from Maich 11, 2021 till Febiuary 10, 2023)

3

Related pariies with whom (ransactions have taken place during the year:

lolding company of Restricted Group entifies (except APEL): Azute Power India Private Limiled

Azure Power (Rajasihan) Private Limited
Azwe Power Forty One Private Limited
Azure Power Forty Three Private Limnited
Azure Power Makemake Private Linnited
A
Azare Power Renewables Fnergy Private Limted (] Felwuary 2, 2022)

e Power Mercury Private Linnted

Azime Power Rooflop (GenCo ) Povate Linited
Azuie Puwer Rooflop Eight Private Limited
Azuwe Power Rooftop Five Private Limited
Azure Power Roofiop Four Puivate Limited
Azuwre Power Rootlop Private Limited
Azuie Power Thirty Eight Private Linuted
Azure Power Thity three Private Limited
Azure Power Thirty Three Private Limited
Azure Power Venus Private Lamiled

Azure Sunhght Private Limited

Azwe Power Earth Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary company:

Azuwie Power Forty Private limited
Azwie Power Thirty Four Private limited

Following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:

1. Transactions during (he year :

Holding company Fellow subsidiary company

Natare ol trausaction For the year ended

Murch 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31. 2022

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2023 March 312022

a) Settlement of liabilities on behalf of the entity

Azure Power India Private Limited 13 361

b).Settlement of liabilities by the entity on behalf ol

Azure Power India Trivate Limited - 1

Azure Power Makemake Private Limited -

¢} Purchase of capital goods

Azuie Power India Private Limited -

"
to

Azure Power Forty Three Private limited -

Azure Power Fortv Private limited - -

N wo

Azure Power Makemake Private Tinuted -

d) Managemen( services received

Azure Power India Private Limited 105 149

«) Lo

ven

Azurc Po-\'v_cr India Privatc Limited - 4 640

Azure Sunlight Private Limited -

Azure Power Renewables Enerpy Private imiled

Arure Power Rooflon Private Limited

Azure Power Roofllop Five Private Limited

Aziue Power Rooflop Four Private Linited

ziiePower Rooflop Fight Private Linied

T\SEULl:\

%, I]_Rj‘?l‘..ls.lfmh\nflnans eiven

Azure ]’(Kjﬂﬂn\lia Prvate Limited

= 4469 |
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Restricted Group- 111
No

s to special purpose combined fncmcial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
LAl amount 10 INR millions unless vtherwise stated)

Azure Power Thirty Eight 'nvate Limited

Azure Power Renewables Energy Private Limited

Azuie Powel Rooftop Private Limited

h) Interest income lrom loan

Azure Power India Private Limned

Azuie Power Veous Private Limited

1410
378

Azure Power Foily One 'invate Limited

Azure Power Thirty Eight Private Limited

Azure Power Metcury Private Lumited

Azure Power Rooltop Private Limited

70

Azue Power Rooftop Four Private Limited

i) Borrowings during the year

Azure Power India Private Limired

i) Repayamnet of borrowings during the year

Azure Power India Private Limited

k) Interest expense

Azure Power India Private Limited

1) Sale of goads and services

Azure Power Eaith Mrivate Limited

m) Rent expense

Azure Power India Privaie Limited

Azure Pawer Thity Four Private limited

2. Balances outstanding at the end of the year

Nature of transaction

Holding company

Fellow subsidiary company

As al
March 31.2023

Asal

Maich 312022

As
March 31,2023

As at
Maich 31

2022

3} Receivables

Azutc Power India Private Limited

30

44

Azuie Power (Rajasthan) Private Limited

Azare Power Forty Thiee Private Linuted

b) Payables

Azuwe Power Tndia Pivate Limited

05

Azute Power Venus Private Limited

Azuic Power Rooftop (GenCo ) Private Limited

Azure Power Forty Three Private Limited

Azure Power Thirty Fowr Private limited

Azute Power Forty Private limited

Azure Power Makemake Private linmited

t|wi—|c

c) Payable for purchase of capital goods

Azure Power India Private Limited

d) Borrowings

Azune Power India Phivate Linited

K]
o
n

e) Interest pavable

Azure Power India Private Limited

N Loans given

Azure Power India Private Limited

[

Azuire Power Venus Private Limited

(¥
v e
3
=3

40

40

Azure Power Meicury Private Limited

70

70

Azuie Power Thitty Three Privale Limited

Azure Power Rooftop Private Limiled

660

71

Azuie Power Rooflop Four Private Limited

Azure Power Rooftop Five Private Limited

Azute Power Rooflop Eight Privale Limited

o) laterest income receivable on loan given

Azuie Power India Private Limited

808

343

Azuie Power Roottop Private Limited

9R

Awzure Power Venus Privale Limited

22.

Azure Power Rooftop Four Private Limited

Azure Power Mercury Private Limited

24

Note:

Terms and conditions of transactions with related partics:

- The (ransactions with related parties aic made on terms equivalent to those that prevait in aim's length tansachons Outstanding Lalaices at the year-end arc unsecured and seitlenient oceurs in
cazh This assessment 1s underlaken each {inancial year thiough examining the financial nesition of the related party and the market i which the related party opeates
- Leans fiom/to related parties cairy an nleresi rate of 6 95% - 10 60% p a and ae 1cpayable/receivable in accordance with the tlerms of the respeetive agicement

- Lhere has been no ansaction with Key ni
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27. Segment information

‘The Restricted Group primarily is carrying out business activities yelating to generation of electricity through non-conventional and renewable sources (refer
note 1) which according to the management, is considered as the only business segment. Accordingly, no separate segmental information has been provided
herein The Restricted Group entities’ principal operations, revenue and decision making functions are all located in India and there are no revenue and non-
current assets outside India

A, Information about revenue from major customers who contributed 10% or more relating to revenue from sale of power:

Revenue from external

Revenue from extemal

customers customers
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31_ 2022
Sale of power
Punjab State Power Corporation Limited 1,637 1,637
Solar Energy Corporation of India 1,003 993
NTPC Limited 891 876
B. Revenue from major products and services
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022
Sale of Power 6,001 6.104
Carbon credit emission income 1 140
Total 6.002 6.244
- (:j'.

:g Chartered \c*
< | Accountants §

Page 38 of 57



Restricted Group- HI
Notes to special purpose combined lnancial Statewents for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amount in INR millions. unless otherwise stated)

28. Revenue (rom contracts with customers

Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in statenient of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022

Revenue as per Contracted price 6,118 6.382
Adjustments for
Liquidated damages (9) (31)
Rebate/Discount (23) (21
Revenue from contract with customers 6.086 6,330

The following table provides information aboul trade receivables. contract assels. and deferred revenue from customers as at March 31, 2023 and March 31,

2022,

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Non current assels

Trade receivables (refer nole 6.1) 200 720
Contracl asscts (refer note 8) 444 418
Current assets

Trade reccivables (refer note 9.1) 3,108 2.901
Contract assets (refer nole 10) 9 8
Non current liabilities

Deferred revenue on account of revenue straightlining 929 773
Movement of contrict assets

Particulars As at March 31. 2023 As al March 312022
Opening Balance 426 231
Addition during the ycar 33 236
Deletion/adjustment during the year (8) 41
Closing Balance 453 426
Movement of contract liabilitics

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As al March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 773 677
Addition during the year 156 96
Closing Balance 929 773

29. Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as detined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been identified by management of the Restricted Group entities from the available intormation. which has
been relied upon by the auditors. According to such identification. the disclosures in respect to Micro, and Small Enterpriscs is as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31.2022

The principal amount and (he interest due (hereon remaining unpaid (o any supplier as at the end of

) 10 6
cach accounting vear
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 7 4
Tuterest due on above 3 2
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting - -
year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the - -
MSMED Act 2006
l_"_l_w amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 3 2]

The amount of farther interest remaining due and payable even in the suceceding years, until such
date when (he interest dues as above we aclually paid to the small cnterprise for the putpose ol
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMLED Act 2006
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30. Leases

Restrieted Group entities as lessee:
Land leases:

The entities in Restricted Group have taken land on lease for construction ot solar power plants, These leases typically run for 26-35 years which is further extendable on
mutual agreement by bhoth lessor and lessee Accordingly, the Group has taken lease period of 35 years considering reasonable certainity and expectation of extension of

the lease period

Information about the leases for which the Group 1s a lessee is presented below:

i) Right-of-use assets

Particulars

For the year ended
NMarch 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 31,2022

Opening hilance

Additions during the year
Adjustment due to change in estimate
Adjustment during the year
Amortisation for the year

Closing balance

i) Leasce liabilitics

Sct out below are the carryving amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the ycar:

840 890
3 (14)
99 -
(23) i
132) 136)
H87 540

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Opening bilance [T 834
Adjustment due to change in estimates 99 -
Accretion of interest 91 78
Paymenls |57} (60)
Closing balance 985 852
Particulars Ay at As at

March 31,2023 March 31 2022
Currenl 62 59
Non-current 923 793
Total 985 852

Below aic the amounts recognised by the Restricted Group entitics in the statement of protit and loss

Particulars

For the vear ended
March 31,2023

lor the year ended
March 31. 2022

Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Interest on lease liabilities

Expenses relating to short-term leases
Total

Below arc the amounts recognised by the Restricted Group entities in the statement of cash flows:

32 36
91 78

3 2
126 116

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Total cash outflow for leases

57

(R11]

The malurity analysis of leases is disclosed in note 35 The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 10% The Company has applied
single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with similar end datc

Extension options:

Land leases contain extension options exercisable by the entities in Restricted Group before the end of the non-cancellable contract period Where practicable, the
Restricted Group entities seek to include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only on mutual
agreement The Restricted Group entities assessed at lease commencement whether it is reasonably ceriain to exercise the extension options The Restricted Group
enlities reassess whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant change in circumnstances within its control

The space has been intentionally lett blank
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31. Commitments and contingencies
a) Commitments

(i) The Restricted Group has commitments of INR 13 million (net of advances) (March 31, 2022: INR 7 million) for purchases of assets for the construction of solar
power plants

{11) The entities of Restricted Group have entered in to Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with following partics:

Name of Authority Agreement ()omn-lcrcial Rate Period . Capacity
date Operation Date (in megawatt)

Gujarat UrjaVikas Nigam Limited* 30-Apr-10 Q22011 lski“‘/‘]: "I; iz ; }Z::z 25 Years 5

) i . .. ISkw/h-11t0 12 Years
Gujarat UrjaVikas Nigam Limited* 30-Apr-10 Q42011 S kwih - 13 10 25 Years 25 Years 5
NTPC Vidyut Vyapar Nigam Limited 15-Oct-10 04 2009 17 91 kw/h 25 Years 2
Punjab State Power Corporation Limited 27-Dec-13 032014 7.67 kw/h 25 Years 15
Punjab State Power Corporation Limited 27-Dec-13 042014 797 kw/h 25 Years 15
Punjab State Power Corporation Linuted 27-Dec-13 Q42014 8 28 kwih 25 Years 4
Uiar Pradesh Power Corporation Limiled 27-Dec-13 012015 8 99/kwh 12 Years** 10
Bangalore Electricity Supply Company Limited 18-Jan-14 Q012015 747 kwih 25 Years 10
Solar Energy Cotporation of India 28-Mar-14 Q1 2015 545 kw/h 25 Years 40
Solar Energy Corporation of India 28-Mar-14 Q1 2015 5.45 kw/h 25 Years 20
Solar Energy Corporation of India 28-Mar-14 QI 2015 545 kw/h 25 Years 40
Southern Power Distribution Company of Andhra
Priidocts Liniiadsss — 05-Dec-14 — 5 89 kw/h 25 Vears 50
til:::r:(ljndcsh\mn Electiicity Supply Corporalion 02Jan-15 o1 2017 651 kwih 25 Years 50
1ubli Ilectricity Supply Company Limited 09-Jan-15 Q12017 6 51 kw/h 25 Years 40
Bihar State Power (INolding) Company Limited | 7-Tan-15 Q3 2016 8 39 kw/h 25 Years 10
Gulbaiga Electricity Supply Corporaton Limited 23-Jan-15 012017 | 6 51 kw/h 25 Years 40
Solar Energy Corporation ot India 03-Feb-15 Q4 2015 545 kw/h 25 Years 5
Punjab State Power Corporation Limited 03-Feb-16 Q4 2016 5.62 kw/h 25 Years 50
Punjab State Power Corporation [ imited 03-Feb-16 Q4 2016 563 kw/h 25 Years 50
Punjab State Power Corporation Limited 03-Feb-16 Q4 2016 503 kw/h 25 Years 50
NTPC Limiled 10-Aug-16 042017 4 67 kw/h 25 Years 100

*The entity had entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) on 30th day of April, 2010 with Gujarat UrjaVikas Nigam Limited for [0 MW @ Rs 15/kwh for first
12 years and £ Rs 5/kwh tor remaining petiod

**PPA may be extended for a further peniod of 13 year on mutually agreed terms and conditions

***The entity had entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) on 5th day of December, 2014 with Southern Power Distribution Company ot Andhra Piadesh
Limited for 50 MW for a period of 25 years @ INR 5 89/kwh to supply power with an escalation of 3% per annum from 2nd year to 10th year and no further escalation
subsequent to the 10th year until the end of the PPPA

b) Contingent labilitics:

(i) A PIL had been initiated by certain individuals claiming to be wildlife experts/interested in conservation of wildlife, before the Supreme Court of Tndia against various
state governiments such as Rajasthan, Gujaral. and MNRE. MOP among others. seeking protection of the two endangered bird species, namely the Great-Indian Bustard
(G1B) and the Lesser Florican found in the states of Rajasthan and Gujarat The Supremc Court by way of order dated April 19, 2021 issued directions fo: (1)
underground all low voltage transmission lines, existing and future lines falling in patential and priority habitats of GIB, (i} to convert all existing high voltage lines in
priority and potential areas of GIB where found feasible within a period of one year, i not found feasible, the matter o be referred (o the commitiee formed by the
Supreme Court which will take a decision on feasibility. and (iii) to install bird divetters on all existing overhead lines in the interim

The Restricted group along with many other developers have projects in the potential area as determined by the court, hence aggrieved by the order the Solar Power
Developers Association (“SPDA™) and Union of India have {iled an application before the Supreme Court seeking among others, exemption from undeigrounding of
triunsmission lines in potential areas The matter wus last listed on November 30, 2022. wheteby directions have been passed 1o parties lo ensure installation of bird
diverters in the Prioiity Atca and for them to be in complhiance with quality standards 1ssued by the Supreme Court Committce. As per the directions of Supreme Court,
for its solar power plant, the Restiicted Group installed bird divertors (as applicable) in the habitats of Great-Indian Bustard dwing FY 2022-23. The PI1, is presently
pending ‘The SPDA has filed an application seeking modification of Supreme Court’s arder dated April 19, 2021 Further, the Supreme Court vide its order daied March
21, 2024 modilied its earlier order dated April 19, 2021 dirccting the Central Government (o constitute an expeit commiltee lo examine the issue of installing overhead
and underground poweilines in the privrity arcas marked for the conservation of the Great Tndian Bustard The expert committee on the GIB issue will . tier-alia, look
into (1) the scope and feasibility of laying down underground and averhead tansmission lines, (i) measures for the conservation of GIB, and (iii) idenlilying suitable
altematives for laying down power lines in the future The expert comumittee is tequired Lo submit its report latest by Tuly 31,2024 Citing practical difficulties in laying
down underground transmission lines, the Supreme Court has also restricted ie requirement of laying down underground transmission lines only to the priorily arca
(covering roughly 13.163 sq knv) Tf the modification application is dismissed, Restiicted Group might cntail significant costs and delays
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(1) In relation to the Restriicted Group’s 50 MWs project in Andhya Pradesh. the DISCOM. Andhia Pradesh Distiibution Company (" APDC™), hud 1ssued z lewer 1o the
Restiicted Group 1equesting the reduction of quoted tantt to INR 244 per unit as against the PPA tate of INR 5 89 per unit for solar projects from the date of
commissioning and threatened termination of the PPA in case of refusal 1o accede Lo such reduction (“Letter”) I'he Restricted Group had challenged the Letter in the
High Court at Vijayawada The High Court vide its judgment dated September 24, 2019, whilst quashing the aloresaid Letter, ditected DISCOM to approach the Andhra
Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commission {(“APTRC™) for reduction of tariff by directing DISCOM to make payment of outstanding and future invoices ac the “interim™
1ate of Rs. 2 44/~ per unit. until the dispute is resolved by APERC Accordingly. the restricted Group has filed a writ petition challenging the Judgment. whereby the
Restricted Group has inter alia sought: (1) setting aside of the Judgment (o the limited extent of the direction 1o DISCOM 10 make payment at the “interim” 1ate of Rs
244 per onitand the implied blessing. granted by the High Courl (o approach the APERC for reduclion of tarill} and (i) quashing ol all actions undertaken by the
tespondents andfor restrain the respondents from taking any action secking reduction ol tarilf under the concluded PPA and/or unilateral alleration of the (crms of such
PPA, pursuant to the directions in the Judgment, including quashing ot the procecdings Further the appellate authority during several hearings had directed the
DISCOM 1o remil the overdue receivables at interim rate

During the previous year on March 15, 2022, High court of Andhra Pradesh, Amaravati hus passed an order in favour of the Company and has directed the DISCOM (o
make the payments of arrears with within six weeks from the date of the order, at the original rate of INR 3.89 per unit mentioned in PPAs During the curient year, the
Company has received a letter from off taker dated August 4, 2022 stating oulstanding liability as at May 31. 2022, to be paid in 12 monthly instalments  The Company
has also received dues pursuant (o the same

Based on a legal opinion oblained by the management and based on favourable order passed from the appellate authority on the above matter, the Company is invoicing
and recognizing revenue as per the PPA and reports the receivables as recoverable The Company has recognized allowance for doubtful trade recejvables on this
receivable as per the expected credit loss model pending receipt of dues

(iii) Viability gap funding represents the amount already received which the government agencies can demand repayment of in case the project fails (o generate power for
a longer period of time
Particulars As at Asat

March 31,2023  March 31,2022
Viability gap Funding (VGI) 1,347 1,347

32. ledging activitics and derivatives

Contracts designated as Cash flow hedges

The Company hedged the fareign curiency exposure risk related to certain invesuments in Restiicted Grroup entities denominated in foreign currency through call spread
option with {ull swap for coupon payments. The foreign cunency forwvard contracts and options were not entered for trading or speculative purposes

The Company documented each hedging relationship and assessed its initial elfectiveness on inception date and the subsequent eftectiveness was tested on a quarterly
basis using dollar olfset method: When the relationship between the hedged items and hedging instiument is highly effective at achicving offsetling changes in cashilows
attributable to the hedged risk, the Company 1ccords in other comprchensive income the entire change in fair value of the designated hedging instrument that 1s included
in the assessment of hedge effectiveness, The gain or loss on the hedge contracts shall be reclassified to interest expense when the coupon payments and principal
repayments are made on the related investments The hedge contracts were effective as of March 31, 2022 and 2023 respectively

Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, permits recording the cost of hedge over the period of contract based on the effective interest rate method. Duting the previous year,
the group has repaid existing debt of USD 500 million and further raised US 414 million. The Restricted Group determined the cost of hedge for existing borrowing al
the time of inception of the contract as INR 3.549 million and recorded un expense of INR 8§38 million and INR 752 million during the period ended March 31, 2023 and
March 31. 2022 respeclively

The following table presents oulstanding notional amount and balancve sheet location information related to foreign exchange derivative contracts as of March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022:

Foreign currency option contracts

As at Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Notional Amount (US$ denominated) 371 398
Non-current assets (INR) 1.908 -
Non-cutrent Liabilities (TINR) - 131
Current Liabilities (TNR) 649 -

The space has been intentionally lett blank
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33. Fair values

Sct gut below, is 4 comparison by elass of the carrying amounts and fair value of (he Restricted Group's financial instruments:

Carrying value Fair valuc
As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2023 Maich 31. 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31 2022
Financial assets at amortised cost
Noa-current trade teceivables 200 720 200 720
Non-cuttent security deposils 9 13 9 13
Performance baok guarantee receivable 9 8 9 8
Non-curtent loans to holding company 4.858 5,896 4 858 5.896
Non-current loans (o fellow subsidiaries B A1 11 41
Nuon-curtent tetm depusits 2 27 2 27
Qther financial assel s 63 60s 365
Financial assets at fair value
Derivative instruments at fair value through OC1* 1,908 - 1,908 .
Total 7.602 7,070 7,002 7,070
Financial liabilitics at amortised cost
3 5'15% Sentor Notes (including curtent maturilies)**® 30,247 29 ¥4 28,397 29,0570
Loans from holding company ** . 70 - 70
Other Financial Liabilities . 4 . 4
Financial liabilities at luir value
Detivative instruments at fair value thiough OCI* - 131 - 131
Total 30,247 30.089 28.397 20,457

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, tetm deposits, interest accrued on term deposits, other bank balances, trade reccivables, unbilled revenue, viability
gap funding receivable (VGF), receivable fiom related parties, security deposits received, curent borrowings. interest accrued, payable for capital goods. trade payables and
security deposits paid approximate their cairying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the price that would be teceived on selling of ussets or paid (o transter a liability in an orderly tansactions
between markel paiticipants al measuwrement date

The following methods and assumptions wete used to estimale the fair values

Measured at fair value:

* The respective companies undel the Respective Group enter into derivative financial instruments with vaiious counterparties, principally financial institutions with
investment gade credit 1atings Foreign cutrency option deiivatives are valued using valuation technigues, which employs the use of maiket observable inputs The most
fiequently applied valuation techniques include forward pricing and swap models, using present value calculations, The models incorporate various inputs including the ciedit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates. yield curves of the 1espective curtencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest
rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying instruments The Restricted Group used the derivatives option pricing model based on the principles of the Black-Scholes
model to detetmine the fair value of the foreign exchanpe derivative contracts The inputs considered in this model include the theoretical value of a call option, the
underlying spot exchange raie as of the balance sheet date, the contracted price of the respective oplion contract, the ferm of the option conlract, the implied volatility of the
underlying foreign exchange rates and the risk-free interest 1ate as of the balance sheel date

At amortised cost:
**The fair values of the intetest-bearing borrowings and loans of Restricted Group are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that retlects the issuet’s
borrowing rate as at the end of the teporting petiod The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2023 was assessed to be wsignificant
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34. Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the assets and liabilitics of the Restricted Group.
Quantitative disclosures fuir value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
Carrying Value active markets observable inputs  unobscrvable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial assets at amortised cost
Non-current trade 1eceivables 200 . - 200
Non-curtent security deposits 9 = ¥ 9
Performance bank guaiantee receivable 9 - - 9
Non-current loans (o holding company 4,858 - " 4,858
Non-current loans to fellow subsidiaties 11 - - 11
Non-current term deposits 2 - = 2
Other financial asset 605 - - 605
Financial assets measured at fair value
Derivative instruments at fair value through OCI 1,908 - 1.908 -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurcment hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2023:

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significant
Carrying Value active markets observable inputs  unobservablc inputs
(Tevel 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial liabilitics at amortised cost
3 575% Senior Notes (including current maturities) 30,247 - - 28,397

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and I evel 2 duning the period

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assels as al March 31, 2022:

Fair valuc measurement using

Quoted prices in - Significant observable Significant
Carrying Value active markets inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1)  (Level2) (Level 3)
Financial assels at amortised cost B
Non-cuwrrent trade receivables 720 - - 720
Non-current security deposits 13 - - 13
Performance bank guarantee receivable 8 - - 8
Non-current loans to holding company 5,896 - - 5,896
Non-current loans 1o fellow subsidiaries 41 - - 41
Non-current term deposits 27 - - 27
Other financial asset 365 - 365
There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices in  Significant observable Significant
Carrying Value aclive markels inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial liabilities al amortised cosl
3 575% Seuior Notes (including current maturities) 29 884 - - 29.252
l.oans from holding company 70 - - 70
Other Financial Liabilities 4 - 4
Financial liabilities at fair value
Derivative instruments at fair value thiough OCI 131 - 131 -

Thete have been no transfets between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, term deposits, interest accrued on term deposits, other bank balances, trade receivables, unbilled revenue, viability
gap funding receivable (VGF), receivable [iom related parties, security deposits received, current bonowings, interest aceiued, payable for capital goods. trade payables and
securily deposits paid as applicable approximate their cairying amouats largely due to the short-term maturities of these instiuments
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35, Financial risk management objectives and policies

The financial liabilitics of respective entities under Restricted Group comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilitics The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to {inance the respective Restiicted Gioup entities” operations. The Restricled Group's principal financial assets include loans, trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and other financial assets, as applicable

The Restricted Group enlitics are exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The senior management of respective Restricled Group entities oversees (he
management of thesc risks The Board of Directors of respective Restricted Group entities reviews and agiecs policies for managing each of these risks, which are
summarised below

Market visk
Macket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of
risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by markel risk include loans and botrowings

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31,2023 and March 31, 2022.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the tisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Restricted Group's
exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primatily to the Restricted Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates

Financial instruments comprise of US$ Senior Notes, loans to related parties which are fixed interest bearing whereas term loans from hanks and financial institution are both
fixed and floating interest bearing Remaining financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing

The exposure of the Restricted Group's tinancial instruments as at March 31. 2023 to interest rate risk is as follows:

As at March 31, 2023 Floating rate financial  Fixed rate financial Non-interest Total
instruments instruments bearing

Financial assels - §g.116 6,685 15,801

Financial liabilities - 30417 2,056 32473

The exposure of the Resticled Group's financial instruments as at March 31, 2022 to interest rate risk is as follows

As at Maich 31, 2022 Floating vate financial Fixed rate funancial Non-interest Total
instruments istruments bearing

Financial usscls B 8.191 4467 12,658

Financial habilities - 30,119 1,296 31.415

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk 1s the risk that the fair value or futwre cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Restiicted Group
entities are exposed to foreign curiency 1isk arising flom changes in foreign exchange tates on foreign currency loan and derivative financial instruments The Restricted
Group enfities enters into foreipn exchange derivalive contiacts (o mitigate {luctuations in foreign exchange rates in respect of these loans

The following table analyses foreign currency risk from financial instruments relating to US$ as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowings
-3.575% Seniol Notes* 30,368 30,004

* Including interest accrued but not due on borrowings of INR 121 million (March 31, 2022; INR 120 million)
Forcign currency sensitivity

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivily to @ reasonably possible change in USD/INR exchange rates, with all other variables held constant The impact on the
Restiicted Group’s loss before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary liabilities

Change in USD rate March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Effect on profit/(less) before tax (in INR) +H(-)53% () 1,518 (-)¥+ 1,500

As the Restricted Group has cntered into foreign exchange derivatives contract to mitigate the foreign exchange fluctuation risk, these derivatives act as economic hedges and
will offset the impacl of any (luctuations in foreign exchange 1ates

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meel its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contraci, leading to a financial loss The Resuicled Group
entitics ate exposcd to credit risk fiom their operating activitics (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks ard financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions und other financial instruments

-
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Trade receivables and coptract asset

Customer credit usk is managed on the basis of Resticted Group’s established policy, procedures and control elating Lo customer credit risk managemen Outslanding
cuslomer receivables and contiact assels are regulaily moniored The Restricted Group evaluales the concentiation of risk with respect to trade receivable and conliact assels
as high Tlowever, since Lhe uade 1eceivables and contract asscts mainly compriise of state utilities/government entitics. the Resltricted Group does not foresee any malerial
credit nsk attached to receivahles from such state utilities/government entities The Restiicted Group does not hold collateral as secutity

Movement in expected credit loss on trade receivables during the yveur (refer note 4(g));

For the year ended Ior the year ended
March 31, 2023 Match 31. 2022

Opening balance 122 387
Chunges in allowance for expected credit loss:

Additional provision during the year (refer note 24) 313 17
Bad debts written off (refer note 24) - 2)
Reversal of provision during the yeat (refer note 20 2) (2) (279)
Closing balance 433 122

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Restricted Group's treasury department in accordance with ils policy Tnvestments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counter party. ‘The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and
therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments

Liquidity risk is the risk that Restricted Group entities will encounter in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset The approach of Restricted Group cntitics to manage liquidily is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to mcet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without mcurring unacceptable losses or nisk damage to its reputation

The Restricted Group entities assessed the concentiation of risk with respect to iefinancing its debt and concluded it to be low The Restricted Group has access to a
sulficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months

Borrowings of Restricted Group iclude INR 30,247 million of senior noles which may be subject to refinancing risk, when they becomes due. as market conditions may not
be possible to refinance the bonds al all o1 to refinance the bonds on favowable tetms Tn addition, hedpes taken on these bonds are covered ranging ftom TNR 80 7/USS to
INR 90 58S, which may expose Restricted Group to additional hedging costs in the futwre

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments The table below summarises the maturity
profile of the Restricted Group’s Tinancial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

Less than | year 1 to S years > 5 years Total

As at March 31, 2023
Lease habilities 63 294 3,192 3,551
Borrowings* 3,391 31.861 - 35,252
Current borrowings* 181 - - 181
Trade payables 243 - - 243
Other financial Jiabilities** 707 - - 707
4.587 32,155 3.192 39.934

As al March 31,2022
Lease habilities 62 279 2,155 2,496
Botrowings* 3,319 31279 - 34.598
Currenl borrowings 165 = - 165
‘I rade payables 165 = - 165
Other financial liabilities** 24 - - 24
3.735 31.558 2,155 37.448

*Including interest on borrowings
** [xcluding interest accrued on botrowings

The space has been intentionally left blank

f<cf Chartered \<”
e -
-2\ Accountants |~

Paye 46 ol 57



Restricted Group- 111
Notes to special purpose combined financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2023
(All amount in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

36. Capital management

For the purpose of the Restricted Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the respective entities of Restricted Group. The primary
objective of the Restricted Group’s capital management is to maximise the sharcholder’s value of the respective entity of
Restricted Group.

The Restricted Group's manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants, if any. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Restricted Group's reviews the
fund management at regular intervals and take necessary actions to maintain the requisite capital structure.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2022,
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37. Employee Benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The entitics in Restricted Group make contribution lowards provident fund Lo a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees The
contribution by entities in Restricted Group to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner

The Restricted Group has recognised INR 3 million (March 31, 2022: INR 3 million) for provident fund contribution in the Stalement of Profit and 1.oss
‘The contribution payable to the plan by the Restricled Group is at Lhe rate specified in (he rules Lo the scheme

(b) Defined benefit plan

Gratuity and other post-cm ployment benetits

The Restricted Group has a defined benefit gratvity plan Every employee who has completed five years or morc of service gets a gratuity on depaitwie at 15
days salary (last drawn salary) for caclr completed year of service. The Scheme is unfunded and ueerued cost is recognised through reserve i the acoimnis
of the entitics of the Restricted Group.

The following tables summaries the components of net benelit expense recogized 1 the prohit and uss account and the unlunded status and anounts
rccognized in the balance sheel.

Net employcee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the vear ended:

Gratuity Gratuity
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Currenl service cost 2 1
Net Interest cost I |
Net expense recognized in statement of profit and loss 3 2
Amount recognised in Other Compreheusive Income for the year ended:
Gratuity Gratuity
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Effect of change in financial assumptions - -
Experience (gains)/ losses (2)
Actuarial(gain)/ loss recognized in the year (2)
Balance Sheet figurves as at:
Gratuity
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Present value ol delined benefit obligation 8 8
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the year ended:
Gratuity Gratuity

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

oz
[=)}

Present value of obligation as al the beginning

Current service cost 2 1
Interest cost 1 1
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss 2 -
Benetits paid 2) 0
On account of transfer of employces (3) -
Present Value of Obligation as at the cnd 8 8
Current portion 2 -
Non-Current portion 6 8
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Restricted Group’s plans are shown below:

March 31,2023 March 31. 2022
Discount rate 7.27% 7.03%
Employee turnover rate 30.00% 9.00%
Withdrawal rate (p.a ) 30 00% 9 00%
Salary Escalation Rate 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, tuke account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant tactors, such as
supply and demand in the employment market
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Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed (o a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Discount rate- Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the liability

Salary escalation rate- Actual salary increases will increase the defined benefit liability Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations
which in turn also increasc the liability

Withdrawal rate- Actoal withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawals rates at subscquent valuations can
impact defined benefit liability

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 is as shown below:

Discount rate Discount rate
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
1 % increase 1 % decreasc 1 % increase 1 % decrease
Defined benefit obligation increased/(decreased) by (0) 0 (N I
Salary Escalation Rate Salary Escalation Ratc
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 % increasc 1 % decrcase ! % increase 1 %4 dccreasc
Defined benefit obligation increased/(decreased) by 0 0) 1 )

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period

The Restricted Group does not have any plan assets. The Restricted Group - [T has sufficient balance of Cash and cash equivalent to fund the liabilitics that
may arise in near luture

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is is 512 years (March 31, 2022: 11 73 years).

Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in the next ten years are as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 2 -
Between 2 und 5 years 5 3
Between 5 and 10 vears 2 3
9 6
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38. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Restricted Group financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues. expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of conlingent liabilities
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates coufd result in oulcomes that require a malerial adjustment Lo the carrying amount of assels or
liabilities affected in [uture periods

A. Judgements
In the process ol applying the enlily’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments. which have the most significant eflect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(i) Revenue from Viability Gap Funding (VGF)

The Restricted Group records the proceeds received [rom Viability Gap Funding (VGF) on fullilment of the underlying conditions as deferred
revenue. Such deferred VGF revenue is recognized as other operaling revenue in proportion Lo the actual sale of solar energy kilowatts during the
period to the total estimated sale of solar energy kilowatts during the tenure of the applicable power purchase agreement pursuant to the revenue
recognition policy. (refer note 14, 17 and 19)

(ii) Classification of leases:

The Restricted Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a leasc as per the requirements of Tnd AS 116 [dentification of a lcasc requires
significant judgement. The Restricted Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease erm (including anticipated renewals) and the
applicable discount ratc

The Resticted Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option (o extend
the Tease il the Group is reasonably certain (o exercisc that option: and periods covered by an option Lo terminate the lease if the Group is
reasonably certain not 1o exereise that option. Tn assessing whether the Group is reasonably certain to cxercise an option to extend a lcase. or not to
exercise an option Lo terminale a lease. it considers all relevant fucts and circumstances that create an economic incentive (or the Group (o exercise
the option o extend the leasc. or not Lo exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-
cancellable period of a lease

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a partfolio of leases with similar
characteristics, (reter note 30)

B. Estimates and assumpltions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a malterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. are described below. The Restricted
Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Lxisting circumstances and
assumptions about futuic developments, however, may change duc to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Restricted
Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur

(i) Impairment of non-financial asscts

Impairment exists when (he carrying value of an assel or cash generating unit exceeds ils recoverable amount, which is the higher ol its fuir value
less costs of disposal and ils valuc in use. The fainr value less costs of disposal calculation is bascd on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, {or similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset The value in
use calculation is based on a Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model The cash flows are derived from the budgel for the next remaining useful life of
the projects Restricted Group entitics. The recoverable amount is scensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes

(ii) Hedging activities and derivatives

The Company has issued 3 575% Senior Notes during the previous year in August, 2021, listed on the Singapore Exchange T imited (“SGX”). The
proceeds were used for repayment of loan of Restricted Group entities, in the {orm of intercompany Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) and
External Commercial Borrowings (LCB’s) denominated in INR. The exchange rate risk on the proceeds invested from the US$ Senior Notes are
hedged through cross currency swap for payment of coupons and through call spread oplion contracts for repayment of principal {collectively
“Option contracts”). The Restricted Group designated these option contracts as a cashllow hedge These options conlracts mitigate the e¢xchange
rate risk associated with the forccasted transaction for semi-annual repayment of coupon and for repayment of the principal balance at the end of
five years

The cashllow fiom the underlying agreement match the terms of a hedge such as — notional amount. maturity of the option contracts, mitigation of
exthmpe e risk, and there are no significant changes in the counter party risk, hence they are designated as u cashilow hedge in accordance with
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(iii) Revenue estimate

Where powcer purchase agreements (PPAs) include scheduled price changes, revenue is recognized al lower of the amount billed or by applying the
average rate to the energy output estimated over the (erm ol the PPA. The determination of the lesser amount 1s undertaken annually bused on the
cumulative amount that would have been recognized had cach method been consistently applicd from the beginning of the contract erm The
Restricted Group estimates the total kilowatt hour units expected to be generated aver the entire term of the PPA. The contractual rates are applicd
o this annual estimate (o determine (he (otal estimated revenue over the term of the PPA  The Restricted Group then uses the total estimated
revenuc and the Lotal estimated kilo-watt hours 10 compule the average rate used to record revenue on the actual energy oulput supplied The
Restricted Group compares the actual energy supplicd Lo the estimate of the energy expected Lo be generated over the remaining term of (he PPA on
a periodic basis. but at least annually. Based on this evaluation. the Restricled Group reassesses the energy output estimated over the remaining
tern of the PPA and adjusts the revenue recognized and deferred to date. The difterence between actual billing and revenue recoguized is recorded
as deferred revenue. (Refer note 19)

(iv) Taxes

Projects of Restricled Group qualify for deduction from taxable income becanse its profits are attributable to undertakings engaged in development
ot solar power projects under section 80-IA of the Indian [ncome Tax Act, [96]1. This holiday is available tor a period of ten consecutive years out
of fifteen years beginning from the year in which the Restricted Group generates power (“'Tax Holiday Period™), however, the exemption is only
availablc to the projects completed on or before March 31, 2017 The Restricted Group anticipates that it will claim the aforesaid deduction in the
last ten years oul of fifteen years beginning with the year in which the Restricted Group generates power and when it has taxable income
Accordingly, its current operations arc taxable at the normally applicable tax rates. Due (o the Tax Holiday Period, a substantial portion of the
temporary differences between the book and lax basis of the Restricled Group’s assets and liabilities do not have any lax consequences as they are
expecled to reverse within the Tax Holiday Period (Refer note 18)

(v) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of {inancial asscts and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markelts, their fair value is measured using valuation techinques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are waken from observable
markels where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as Jiquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
aflect the reported [an value of financial instraments (Refer note 33)

(vi) Provision for decommissioning

The Restricted Group has recognised provisions for the future decommissioning of solar power plants set up on leased land al the end of the lease
term or expury of power purchasc agreement. In determining the fair valuc of the provision, assumptions and estimates arc made in rclation to
discount rates, the expected cost (o dismantle and remove the plant from the leased land and the expected timing of those costs. The carrying
amount of the provision as at March 31, 2023: INR 101 million (March 31, 2022: INR 115 million) (refer note 13.1) The Group estimates that the
costs would be scttled upon the expiration of the Icase and calculates the provision using the DCF method based on the following assumptions:

P Estimated range of cost per megawati— INR 0.39 million (o INR 0 41 million (March 31, 2022: TNR 0 39 million to INR 0 41 million)

» Discount rate — 10.0% (March 31, 2022: 8 5% p.a.)

» Inflation rate — §.0% (March 31, 2022: 8 0% p.a)

(vii) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives cstimated by
the management Considering the applicability of Schedule 11 of the Companics Act, 2013, the management has re-estimated useful lives and
residual value of all of ils property plant and equipment. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflects its estimate
of the uscful lives and residual value of the Property plant and cquipment, though these rates in certain cascs arc different from lives prescribed
under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

Bascd on lcgal opinion obtained, management is of the view that application of CIERC and/or SERC rates for the purpose of accounting of
depreciation expense is nol mandatory Hence, Restricted Group is depreciating Lhe assets based on lile as determined by the management

During the previous year, the Restricted Group basis the technical asscssment. had revised the uscful life of solar power project assets i.c. solar
power modules (rom 25 yeats to 35 years. These changes had been considered as change of accounting estimate as per Ind AS & (Accounting
policics, change in accounting estimates and errors) and had been accounted for prospectively with effect from April 1, 2021 (refer note 5 and 22)

[ Chartered \e=
| Accountants v

Page 51 of 57



Restricted Group- 11T
Notes to special purpose combined financial Statements lor (he year ended March 31, 2023
(AT amount in INR millions, unless othersvise stated)

(viii) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benelit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benelits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ trom actual developments in the
future These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Duc to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumplions, All assumptions are reviewed at
cach reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. Tn determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India. the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation
For plans operated outside India, the management considers the interest rates of high guality corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the
currencics of the post-cmiployment benefit abligation with at least an *AA” rating or above, as sct by an internationally acknowledged rating
agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benelil obligation. The underlying
bonds are further reviewed for quality Thosc having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discounc rate is
based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countrics. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuily increases are based on expected future inflation rales lor the respective
countrres

TFurther details about gratuity obligations are given in Nole 37

(ix) L.eases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannol readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therelore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) (o measure lease
liabilities. The TBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have o pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary 1o obtain an asset of a similar value (o the right-of-use assct in a similar cconomic cnvironment. ‘The 1BR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay’. which requires estimation when no observable rales are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease, The Group estimates the IBR using obscrvable inputs (such as market intercst rates) when availuble and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates. (Refer note 30)

(x) Key assumption about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources in case of Income Tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, legal interpretations of various other
acls/laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income, Given the wide range ol business relationships and the long term nature and
complexity of existing contractual agreements, diflerences arising between the actual results and the agsumptions made, or future changes (o such
assumptions, could nccessitate future adjustments to tax income and expensc alrcady recorded ‘The Restricted Group establishes provisions, based
on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various fuclors, such as experience of previous tax audits and ditfering
interpretations ol tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authorily. Such dilferences of interpretation may arise on a wide
variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies

{xi) Provi

ion for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Restricted Group follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for rade receivables The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition. ECL. is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are duc to the group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows (hat the cntily expects to receive (ie., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective
interesl rate. As concluded by the management (hat there is no risk of default from the DISCOMs/State Government bodies being a state
government cntitics. Accordingly, no provision for default risk is required for receivables from DISCOM. As per the requirements of Tnd AS 109,
on subsequent measurement, the management while making ECL assessment considered the past experience with the Government of honouring its
commitments and the strong capacity and ability of the Governmenl to meet its contractual cash flow obligalions
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39. Reclassification
Certain reclassifications have been made to the comparative period’s financial statements to enhance comparability with the current year’s tinancial statements As
a result, certain line items have been reclassified in the statement of profit and loss, the details of which are as under:

Items of statement of Profit and Loss before and after reclassification for the year ended March 31, 2022:

Particulars Amount before Reclassification Amount after
reclassification reclassification
Sale of power 6,089 15 6,104
Other operating revenue - 86 86
Other expenses 873 101 974

a) The Restricted Group had earlier classified the viability gap funding income for year ended March 31, 2022 under sale of power To align with requirements of
Schedule 3 and Ind AS 20, the Restricted Group has reclassified the viability gap funding income from sale of power to other operating revenue for the year ended
March 31, 2022
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40, Standards notified but not yet effective

Ministry of' Corporate Affaits ("MCA™) natifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companics (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued fiom time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended (he Companices (Indian Accounting Standards) Rufes. 2015 by issuing the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 applicablc from April 1, 2023, as below:

(a) Ind AS 1 —Presentation of Financial Statements:

The amendments require companics to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies and added guidance on
how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures Accounting policy information, together with
other information, is matetial when it can reasonably be expected (o influence decisions of primary users of gencral-purpose financial statements The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements

(b) Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes:

The amendments clarify how companies accounl for deferred lax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applics to
transactions that, on initial recognition. give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact. if any, in
its financial statemcents

(¢) Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors:

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies, accounting estimales and correction of crrors, Tt has also been clarified
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
signilicant impact in its financial stalements

41. Other statutory information

1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initialed or pending against the Group for holding any Benami
properly

(11) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck ofT,

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet (o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(v) The Company have nol advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or eniity(ies). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with (he
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

() provide any guarantee. security or the like to or on behal{ of the Ultimate Bencficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behal{ of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii} The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been suirendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961,

(ix) The Company has used its specilic borrowings for the specific purpose for which they were taken,

42. Whistle blower complaint

During the previous and current year, the Group received whistle-blower complaints on various mallers, including lapses in internal control for certain
key arcas, governance and vendor management, The Board of Directors of the ultimale holding company engaged extemal counsel to undertake
investigations on the allcgations thercof. None of those allegations pertain to the Restricted Group and thercfore no adjustment was required to be made
in the books on account However. some of the Group companies have made certain adjustments in the books of account as a prudent measure  Further,
in one of the ongoing investigations (“Special Committee™) in relation (o matetial projects of the Group, the Special Commiltee have identified evidence
that certain individuals formerly aftiliated with the Group may have had knowledge of, or were involved in an apparent scheme with persons outside the
Group to make improper payments in relation to certain projects. I'o date, the Special Committee has not identificd related improper payments or
transfers by the Group The Special Committee’s investigation is still ongoing, The Special Committee’s review and its findings have impacted the
decision-making of the Group in connection with such projects. ‘The Group has disclosed the details of the Special Committee’s investigation to the SEC
and the U S Department of Justice, and the Group continucs to cooperate with those agencies The current members of the Board of Directors of the
ultimate holding Company have conlimmied that none of them were awwe of the apparent scheme referred (o above other than through the Special
Comnuttee investigation, The Group remains steadfast in its commitment to upholding the principles of transparency, accountability, and cthical
conduct in all areas of its operations. We will continue to monitor and asscss our internal processes 1o ensure compliance with all relevant laws and
rcgupw.
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43. The Reslricled Group 1s in process of conducting a transfer pricing study as required by the transfer pricing regulations under the income tax act
(“regulations”) t determine whether the transactions entered during the year ended March 31. 2023 with associated enterprises were undertaken at arms
length price The Management confirms that all the transactions with associate enterprises are undertaken at arm length prices and is confident that the
aloresaid regulations will not have any impact on the financial statements. particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for raxation

44, As per the provision of the Companies Act. 2013, a company is required (o convene the Annual General Meeting ("AGM™ for adoption of its
annual audited financial statements within the six months trom the end of each financial year. ¢ September 30 (“Due Date™). The Registrar of
Companies ("ROC") granted three months extensions to the Restricted Group-1L SPVs to hold the AGMs (or financial year 2021-22 and 2022-23 on or
before December 31. 2022, and December 31. 2023 respectively Considering the delay in closure of audit due 1o ongoing investigations (refer note 42).
the Restricted Group-111 SPVs have not been able to hold the AGM for linancial year 2021-22 and 2022-23 within timelines as stated above The AGM
for financial year 2022-23 is not held til} date and the AGM [lor financial year 2021-22 was held beyond December 31. 2022

The Restricted Group-111 SPVs will apply for compounding of the Offence for not holding the AGM for tinancial year 2021-22 and 2022-23. on or
betore December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2023 respectively. and liable to pay penalties as may be imposed by ROC Management is unable to
ascertain the amount of penalties for these Offences and hence no accruals for the same has been taken in these financial statements

45. On December 14. 2023, Azure Power Ciergy Ltd ("APEL ™) completed a consent solicitation (the “Consent Solicitation™) in respect of the 3 575%
Senior Notes due 2026 (the “2026 Notes™). APEL sought the consent of the Noteholders of the 2026 Notes to amend certain terms of the indenture
dated as of August 19, 2021 (the 2026 Indenture™). The purpose of the consent solicitation was to: (i) undertake to make tender otfers to purchase an
outstanding principal amount of U.S $12,000.000 ot the 2026 Notes by March 25, 2024 and an outstanding principal amount of U.S $8.000.000 of the
2026 Notes by August 26, 2024: and (ii) make certain amendments and provide certain confirmations with respect to the reporting covenant of each ol
the Indentures (the “proposed amendments)

The consent solicitation was announced on November 28. 2023 The deadline to submit consent instructions expired at 3:00 pm New York time on
December 7. 2023 Over 99% consent instructions were received On December 8. 2023. APEL executed a supplemental indenture with Azure Power
Global [imited (as Parent). the trustee and the collateral agents to implement the proposed amendments On December 14, 2023, the consent fee was
paid and the proposed amendments became operative

Pursuant to the terms of the amended Indentures. the Company. in conjunction with the other members of the restricted group (collectively referred to as
Restricted Group-(I1), is mandated to submit its Combined Annual Financial Statements within 30 days to Trustee following the submission of
financials by the Ultimate Parent Company to the Securities Exchange Commission ("SEC’). Flowever, if the Ultimate Parent Company docs not file the
said results with SEC and the Common Stock of the Ultimate Parent Company is not listed for trading on an internationally recognised stock exchange,
the Ultimate Parent Company has u window ot 120 days post the tiscal year-end to file these financials with the Trustee. Accordingly. on July 13. 2023,
the Ultimate Parent Company received a delisting notification from the New York Stock Exchange (‘NYSE"), indicating the decision to delist its equity
shares and on April 01, 2024, the Ultimate Parent Company terminated and/or suspended its duty to file the reports/result with SEC. Accordingly. the
Ultimate Parent Company now has a window of 120 days post the fiscal year-end to file these financials with the Trustee

Further. as per the terms of the amended Indentures, APEL launched tender offers for the 2026 Notes on February 16, 2024, The early deadline of the
tender offers was on March 1. 2024 and APEL purchased US$14.477,000 of the 2026 Notes on March 1 1, 2024,

For nnd on behalf of Restricted Group

e
{
(B} Diree
Place = Ebene, Mauritius Place: Ebene Mauritius
Date 15 April 2024 Date 15 April 2024
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Year ended March 31,2023 Special Purpose Combined Financial Results:
Operating Results
Revenue from operations

Operating revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023 was INR 6,086 million, from ITNR 6,330 million as compared to the year ended
March 31, 2022, The revenue in current year has decreased from last year primarily on account of decline in income from carbon
credit emission.

Other income

Non-operating income for the Restricted Group for the year ended March 31, 2023 was INR 49 million, a decrease of INR 518 million,
from INR 567 million as compared to the year ended March 31, 2022. The decrease was primarily on account of write back of
allowance for doubtful trade receivables written back and foreign exchange gain (net) on refinancing of green bonds recognised in
previous year and decrease in liabilities no longer required written back.

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expenses during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 was INR 51 million.

Operating expenses (exclusive of depreciation and amortisation)

Operating expense for the year ended March 31, 2023 decreased by 9% to INR 888 million from INR 974 million for the year ended
March 31, 2022. There was a decrease in loss on account of modification of contractual cash flows of INR 164 million, adjustment
related to viability gap funding by INR 101 million, assets written off by INR 43 million, management fees by INR 44 million and
provision for diminution in assets by INR 25 million offset by increase in allowance for doubt{ul trade receivables of INR 296 million.

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation and amortisation expense for the RG-1II during the year ended March 31, 2023 and ended March 31, 2022 was INR
1,041 million.

Interest income

Interest income during the year ended March 31. 2023 increased by INR 116 million. or 15%, to INR 875 million as compared to INR
759 million for the year ended March 31, 2022, primarily on account of interest income on trade receivables.

Finance cost

Finance cost during the year ended March 31. 2023 decreased by 21%, to INR 2,313 million from INR 2,922 million as compared to
the year ended March 31, 2022 on account of refinancing of green bonds during the previous year.

Tax expense

Tax expense for the Restricted Group during the year ended March 31, 2023 was INR 706 million, as compared to tax expense of INR
1,153 million during the year ended March 31, 2022. During current year, deferred tax expense (net) has decreased by INR 468 million
on account of movement in the carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities and their tax base.

Net profit after tax

Net profit after tax was INR 2,011 million for the year ended March 31, 2023, compared to net profit after tax of INR 1,515 million
during the year ended March 31, 2022. The increase in net profit was primarily due to decrease in interest cost (net) on account of
refinancing of green bonds and decrease in deferred tax expense (net).
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Cash Flow Discussion

Fiscal Year Ended March 31,2023 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2022

The following table reflects the changes in cash flows of the Restricted Group for fiscal years ended March 31, 2022 and 2023 derived
from the Restricted Group financial statements prepared using recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS and the guidance
note on Combined and Carve-out Financial Statements issued by the ICAT:

For Fiscal Year Ended March 31,

Cash Flow Data 2023 2022 Change
INR INR INR
(In millions) (In millions) (In millions)
Net cash flows from operating activities 5,078 4,573 505
Net cash flows used in investing activities (424) 739 (1,163)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (4,349) (11,310) 6,961

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operating activities for the year ended March 31, 2023 increased to INR 5,078 million, as compared to INR 4,573
million during the year ended March 31, 2023 primarily on account of net increase in working capital changes by INR 537 million.

Cash flows (used in)/ from investing activities

Cash used in investing activities for the year enided March 31, 2023 was INR 424 million, as compared to cash generated in investing
activities of INR 739 million during the year ended March 31, 2022, primarily on account of increase in investment in bank deposits
by TNR 908 million and decrease in interest income by INR 183 million.

Cash flows used in financing activities

Cash used in financing activities was INR 4,349 million for the year ended March 31, 2023, as compared to cash used in financing
activities of INR 11,310 million during the year ended March 31, 2022. This is primarily on account of refinancing of green bonds in
the previous year and consequential decrease in finance cost.

Liguidity Position

As of March 31, 2023, Restricted Group had INR 2,666 million of cash, cash equivalents and other bank balances.

Combined Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

Combined EBITDA of Restricted Group was INR 5,196 million for the year ended March 3 1, 2023, compared to INR 5,872 million
during the year ended March 31, 2022. The decrease in EBITDA was primarily due to decrease in income from carbon credit emission
and decrease in other income.
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